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Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Sanxun Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to all shareholders the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, referred to as the “Group”
or “we”, “our”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”).

MACRO ANALYSIS OF THE INDUSTRY

The year of 2021 was definitely an unusual year in China’s history,
and also left an indelible mark in the development history of
China’s real estate. China’s real estate market has experienced
a transformation from booming development in the first half of
the year to in-depth adjustment in the second half of the year.
After more than one year’s regulation and restart, it is difficult to
circulate normally: the transaction cycle of new and second-hand
houses is unsmooth, so are the development and construction
cycle and the land supply cycle. The heavy pressure of capital
forced enterprises to monetize at a lower price, which exacerbated
the wait-and-see sentiment of buyers, further created a vicious
circle, and increased the industry risks day by day. The formation
of a virtuous circle among market, enterprises and residents is the
exploration direction of many real estate enterprises.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group, together with
its associates, recorded a cumulative contracted sales amount
of approximately RMB7,405.4 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 16.8%. During the Reporting
Period, the Group confirmed sales revenue of RMB5,616.6 million,
representing a substantial year-on-year increase of 42.3%, and
realized an annual net profit of RMB259 million. The Group had
total assets of approximately RMB17,211.2 million; and total cash
and bank balances of approximately RMB1,694.1 million.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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REVIEW OF WORK IN 2021

During the Reporting Period, the Group paid continuous attention
to the situation of the real estate industry, adhered to the
investment standard of paying equal attention to profit and cash
flow, and simultaneously deepened and expanded business so
as to efficiently replenish the land reserve. During the Reporting
Period, the Group acquired 3 plots of land in total, with a total
construction area of approximately 271,100 square meters (“sq.
m.”), and further implemented the Group’s investment strategy of
“Deepening the Development in Anhui and Expanding in Yangtze
River Delta”.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of approximately
3.7 million sg.m. of land bank at different stages of development.
The Group was rated the 85th among the top 100 China real
estate enterprises in terms of comprehensive strength in 2021 and
the 70th among the top 100 China real estate enterprises in terms
of brand values in 2021 by E&H Corporation. Since its selection in
2019, the Group has been ranking among the Top 100 China Real
Estate Enterprises in Comprehensive Strength and the Top 100
China Real Estate Enterprises in Brand Value for three consecutive
years, which is an affirmation of the Group’s concept of “Creating
a Happy Life”.

2021 was significant for the Group. In July 2021, the Company
was successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, becoming the first IPO listed real estate
enterprise in the year, raising more than USD110 million (including
exercising the over-allotment right).

In addition, in order to further implement the corporate mission of
“Creating a Happy Life”, the Group has made continuous efforts
to improve its product strength and service strength, continuously
optimized its management mechanism, and reviewed the past to
learn experience and improve its standardization level; the Group
flattened its organizational structure, reduced the management
radius, and raised the management efficiency and operating
income. In terms of cooperation mechanism, the Group adhered
to the principle of “Awe, Growth, Win-win and Ingenuity”, actively
communicated with suppliers, funders, customers, employees and
other partners, shared resources, created value and built a win-
win cooperative ecosystem.
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OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2022

Looking forward to 2022, China will still adhere to the general
keynote of “Houses are for Living Instead of Speculation” and
gradually achieve the goal of “Stabilizing Land Premium, Housing
Price, and Expectation”. With the implementation of various
national regulatory policies, the Group will adjust the business
strategy in a timely manner to adapt to the new operating model
of the industry. The Group will seize the opportunities under the
new model of real estate development in China, strive to open
up a broader space for development, stabilize and enhance its
industry and market position, and achieve steady breakthroughs in
business performance.

The healthy, sustainable and high-quality development of a real
estate enterprise relies on the transformation of its operation
model and needs to return to the essence of business operation.
In terms of development orientation, it is necessary to change from
scale-oriented to balanced-oriented, and maintain appropriate
balance between scale growth, risk control, and profitability
requirements. In terms of development focus, it is necessary to
shift from high-speed growth to customer interests, and make
efforts to improve the quality of products and services. In terms
of organizational structure, it is necessary to continue to tap
management dividend, improve internal capabilities, cultivate
internal strength, and optimize organizational structure.

In 2022, the Group will adhere to the strategy of steady
development, organizational synergy, and win-win cooperation,
continue to improve customer satisfaction, and achieve further
growth in business performance. The Group will stay focused on
customers, continue to improve product and service capabilities,
and enhance customer stickiness. Guided by the requirements
of the capital market, the Group will continue to improve the level
of financial and cost management, and realize the transformation
from management to efficiency. The Group will focus on
strengthening communication with partners, continue to expand
resource channels, accelerate resource pooling, and create
value. At the same time, the Group will continue to optimize its
organizational structure and enhance its internal management
capabilities. Through continuous improvement of internal cohesion
and synergy, we will build a team that is capable of and good
at winning battles, and not afraid of difficulties, thereby enabling
the Group to become a listed real estate enterprise with healthy,
sustainable and high-quality development.
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, customers and partners for their
support, and to directors, management team and all employees
for their hard work and dedication over the past milestone year for
the Group.

| am full of confidence and expectation for the development of
the industry and the Group’s business strategy in the next stage.
| believe that the Group has enough courage and ability to face
the challenges ahead of 2022 and achieve business growth, great
progress and steady development.

Qian Kun
Chairman & Executive Director
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ANNUAL RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB5,616.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 42.3% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB923.3 million with a gross profit margin
of approximately 16.4%.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB258.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 29.6% as compared to the year ended
31 December 2020. Profit attributable to owners of the
parent was approximately RMB3.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 99.0% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Total assets as at 31 December 2021 were approximately
RMB17,211.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 1.5% as compared to 31 December 2020.

Contracted sales amount of the Group together with its
associate for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB7,405.4 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 16.8%; contracted gross floor area (the
“GFA”) sold was approximately 871,629 sqg.m. for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing a year-on-year
increase of 15.6%.

Cash and bank balances were approximately RMB1,694.1
million as at 31 December 2021.

Net gearing ratio which was calculated by dividing the net
of interest-bearing liabilities minus cash and bank balances
(including restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash
equivalents) by the total equity was at a net cash position
as at 31 December 2021.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®WEDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a fast-growing real estate developer in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) focusing on the development and
sales of residential properties. Headquartered in Shanghai and
deeply rooted in Anhui Province, the Group had established its
presence in the Yangtze River Delta. Since the establishment of
its predecessor, Anhui Sanxun Investment Group Co., Ltd., in
2004, the Group had been strategically focusing on the real estate
market in Anhui Province, actively expanded cities located in the
Yangtze River Delta, expanded its operation from core prefecture-
level cities to county-level cities in the province, and had also
successfully expanded into the real estate markets of Shandong
and Jiangsu provinces since 2018.

The Group was successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 6611) by way of the global offering (as defined
in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2021 (the
“Prospectus”)) on 19 July 2021 (the “Listing Date”) (the
“Listing”). This marked an important milestone in the development
of the Group.

The Group achieved a constant growth during the year ended
31 December 2021. The Group’s revenue increased from
RMB3,946.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB5,616.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, including an associate, the
Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB7,405.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.8%.

By optimizing the debt structure, controlling the debt growth and
strengthening the cash reserves, the Group continued to intensify
its financial risk resistance. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
major debt indicators remained at an industry healthy level,
including net gearing ratio at a net cash position (31 December
2020: net cash), cash (including restricted cash, pledged deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) to short-term borrowing ratio of
1.2 times (31 December 2020: 2.1 times) and liabilities to asset
ratio (excluding advanced sales proceeds) of 66.0% (31 December
2020: 79.4%), all of the “Three Red Lines” have been satisfied.
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group’s projects have received various awards during
the year ended 31 December 2021, including Huaiyuan
Sanxun-Elegance (& = $e¢@ZEF1H) was granted with “Year
2021 Real Estate Quality and Safety Premises” (2021 % &&=
E'E 2 ULiERR) as announced by the Real Estate Research
Institution of Anhui Province, which reflected our excellent quality

and production capabilities.

With both opportunities and challenges in the real estate industry,
the Group adhered to its goal of “Creating a Happy Life” and
operational approaches of “maintaining stable results with rising
trend, increasing efficiency and reducing expenditure”. The
Group focused on the improvement of core business capabilities,
deepened its Yangtze River Delta development footprint, forged
ahead and achieved good operational results.

Industry Review
Performance Review

In 2021, China’s real estate market saw an upward trend followed
by a downward trend. The overall market performance for the year
was at a record high but fell sharply since the second half of the
year. Nevertheless, the sales area and sales volume of commercial
housings for the year reached record highs.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the sales area
of China’s commercial housings in 2021 reached a record 1.79
billion sg.m., representing an increase of 1.9% over the previous
year, of which the sales area of residential housings was 1.57
billion sg.m. with a year-on-year increase of 1.1%, that of office
buildings increased by 1.2% year-on-year, and that of commercial
business premises decreased by 2.6% year-on-year. In 2021, the
sales volume of China’s commercial housings was RMB18.193
trillion, representing an increase of 4.8% over the previous year,
setting a new record high, of which the sales volume of residential
housings increased by 5.3% year-on-year, that of office buildings
decreased by 6.9% year-on-year, and that of commercial business
premises decreased by 2.0% year-on-year.
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)
Industry Review (Continued)
Performance Review (Continued)

In 2021, the national real estate development investment was
RMB14.7602 ftrillion, representing an increase of 4.4% over the
previous year, of which the investment in residential housings
was RMB11.1178 trillion, representing an increase of 6.4%; the
investment in office buildings was RMB597.4 billion, representing
a decrease of 8.0%; the investment in commercial business
premises was RMB1.2445 trillion, representing a decrease of
4.8%. The land acquisition area of real estate development
enterprises was 215.9 million sg.m., representing a decrease
of 15.5% over the previous year; the housing construction area
of real estate development enterprises was 9,753.87 million
sg.m., representing an increase of 5.2% over the previous year,
of which the residential housing construction area was 6,903.19
million sg.m., representing an increase of 5.3%. The newly
commencement area of housings was 1,988.95 million sg.m.,
representing a decrease of 11.4% over the previous year; of
which the newly commencement area of residential housings were
1,463.79 million sg.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of
10.9%. The completed area of housings was 1,014.12 million
sg.m., representing an increase of 11.2% over the previous year,
of which the completed area of residential housings was 730.16
million sg.m., representing an increase of 10.8% over the previous
year.

As of the end of 2021, the area of commercial housings available
for sale was 510.23 million sq.m., representing an increase of
8.58 million sg.m. compared with the end of November. Among
them, the area for sale of residential housings increased by 4.8
million sg.m., that of office buildings increased by 940,000 sg.m.,
and that of commercial business premises increased by 460,000
sg.m..
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BUS| N ESS REVIEW (Continued)
Outlook

The year 2021 marks the commencement of the 14th Five-
Year Plan. Looking ahead, the industry is gradually returning
to be rational and returning to the very essence of operation.
During the Reporting Period, the gross domestic product was
RMB114.4 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%;
the national real estate development investment was RMB14.8
trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 4.4%; the sales
area of commercial housings was approximately 1.79 billion sg.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.9%. With the COVID-19
situation becoming more contained, the overall recovery trend
of China’s national economy is positive and the momentum of
steady recovery of China’s macro economy will continue. Looking
forward to the 2022, against the background of the unchanged
real estate control policies, the “Three Red Lines” of real estate
financing, the tightening of market liquidity margins, and the
implementation of the policy of “centralised land supply” and
“centralised management of housing loans” will continue to bring
new challenges to real estate investment, but it also drives real
estate developers to focus on cash flow of operating activities
and promotes further improvement of sustainable operation
capabilities. Against the current macro-economic background,
the prospects of the real estate market are still optimistic in
the long-term. The Group adheres to the business strategy of
keeping expenditure within the limits of revenue, insisting on
steady investment and further improving the accuracy of land
bank expansion. In the future, in addition to participating in land
bidding, auctions and listings in the public market, the Group will
vigorously explore the non-public market resources and acquire
quality land resources reserve through mergers and acquisitions,
urban renewal and industrial city and other approaches. Driven
by the macro-economic policy environment, the Group will further
stabilise its leverage and increase its turnover rate and improve
management quality.

In terms of financial management, the Group will continue
to comply with relevant regulatory requirements, strengthen
financial disciplines, insist on strengthening financial security and
maintaining sufficient liquidity. The Group will further broaden
financing channels and further develop low-cost financing
channels.

¥KEEw)

BEE

2021 2+ MABEBER T E - BREKRE -
TLEEUDREUREDBREERE - NS
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HiEES 1% BAEHERRBEYARE
14870 - AL EA4%  BREANNET
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UEIE o RIEO0224F - EHIEEHIRETE -
EMERAN [ ZHEAKR]  HERIRK
= L RER SRR [ EFEREEE
1B B S A R A S Rk - B
TEEMEREREDTREEETHNES R
g YHRBNEAREQLES EENE
BOESET BHENENSSBRKAS
17 o REEEREE AL N LR B
FREIEE  WE—SRE I REERREMAE
B o Rk AEEBRT2EAMTS LW
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ERE  MRMBLRE  BRIRMBERE
RigmrAnRSEs ASEKE-—FTHRE
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)
Outlook (Continued)

The real estate market in the Yangtze River Delta is a region
which recovers quickly in the post-epidemic period. During the
Reporting Period, with the backing of the Anhui province cities
that the Group was deeply rooted for many years, the Group will
continue to actively expand in Yangtze River Delta cities. The
Group will make full use of the listing on the Stock Exchange as
a platform to achieve diversified financing channels and promote
the business development of the Group to maximise returns to the
Shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Property Development Business
Contracted sales

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded contracted sales
of approximately RMB6,307.7 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 11.5%, and contracted gross floor area sold
of approximately 791,871 sq.m., representing a year-on-year
increase of 12.5%. The average selling price of our contracted
sales for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB7,965.5 per sq.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 0.9%.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contract liabilities of
approximately RMB9,545.4 million, as compared to approximately
RMB9,458.9 million as at 31 December 2020, representing an
increase of approximately 0.9%.

14 Sanxun Holdings Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E3 - 3E-C0¢ )

Property Development Business (Continued) MEERER(F)

Sale of properties YEIHE

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue 2R 35I| A HA K & 1E B B3 BT /R 3% 3 32 (= 1
recognised from sales of properties development, the aggregate ZIDAEEEWELREBHENDERYA -
GFA delivered, and the recognised average selling price (the BEXNHERZLEEBERDHERNEFTKE
“ASP”) per square meter by geographic locations for the periods & E([FHEE]) :

and as at the dates indicated:

For the year ended/as at 31 December 2021 © For the year ended/as at 31 December 2020

22021 E12 A3 ALEE/ HZ0020 12 A31 ALLEE/
®2021512R31H 20205124318
GFA Total Recognised GFA Total  Recognised
delivered revenue ASP delivered revenue ASP
BRI B} BRI B2
BEER 10N THEE BREEE EON THER
sq.m. RMB'000 (RMB/sq.m.) sq.m. RMB'000  (RMB/sq.m.)
AR®  (AR¥/ ARE  (ARE/
THK K K oK)
Chuzhou™ B0 84,064 436,848 5,197 120,280 840,932 6,991
Mingguang Bxm 62,243 292,467 4,699 77,656 372,786 4,800
Lixin JilEa 130,041 855,504 6,579 142,754 985,338 6,902
Bozhou® 2/ 116,711 825,252 7,071 165,047 1,331,211 8,066
Fengyang B 4,283 34,660 8,092 4,060 32,874 8,097
Hefei Al 56,606 713,738 12,609 - - -
Fuyang Bh 208,158 1,477,151 7,096 - - -
Tai'an o 32,943 169,771 5,153 70,020 382,950 5,469
Shouxian =14 63,281 526,141 8,314 - - -
Nanjing MR 10,280 285,114 27,734 - - -
Total /24 768,605 5,616,646 7,308 579,817 3,946,091 6,806
Notes: Hiat -
(1) Excludes Mingguang and Fengyang. (1) B Sk T X BLRS SABR N ©
@) Excludes Lixin. @) FISEGRRIN o
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development Business (Continued)
Sale of properties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a diverse portfolio of
48 projects, 18 were completed projects, 28 were projects under
development and 2 were projects held for future development.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had completed properties
held for sale of RMB1,550.3 million, representing a 186.6%
increase from RMB540.9 million as at 31 December 2020. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in GFA completed
during the Reporting Period. The Group has obtained the
construction completion certificates in respect of all completed
properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had properties under
development of RMB10,645.9 million, representing a 8.7%
decrease from RMB11,656.6 million as at 31 December 2020,
which remained stable as compared to the corresponding period
last year.

16 Sanxun Holdings Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continuea) ESAC]- 48y

Land Bank THb

The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of the Group’s k@7l A= @ 73202112 431 B + b
land reserves portfolio as at 31 December 2021: HEBERBEDT

Equity
attributable Actual/Estimated
tothe Sitearea  Construction Land bank

No. Project Name* City Group  Main proposed use (insq.m) Completion Date (insq.m)  Location
AEE {E4ER BBt THEE
5% 2R%H i EftBs IZRRRR (¥A:%) RHAR (Trk)  #t

Projects developed by the Group and our subsidiaries
TEERAMELARSNNE

1 Chuzhou Joy Shire (Brtish Mansion)  Chuzhou 100%  Residentia 68,696.00 2021/0/31 9,898.75  No.99, Shiin Road, Chuzhou Cly, Anhui Province
RARGE (E6%E) il [z ZHERT R
2 Mingguang Brish Mansion Chuzhou 100%  Residentia 4436640 2019/08/08 108402 Intersection of Mingguang Avenue and Liuwan Road,
Mingguang Cty, Chuznou City, Anfui Province
BrakEz il £z REERNTRA TR RERHERR XD
3 Mingguang No. 1 Yard Chuzhoy 100%  Residential 4118220 2020/07/23 3,688.22  Intersection of Wang Ying Road and Xingxing Road,
Mingguang City, Chuzhou City, Anhui Province
BTk B iz FEE ULES iR =L
4 Mingguang Park Vil Chuzhou 100%  Residentia 94.249.90 2022/09/30 12697151 Intersection of Moshan Avenue and Huaihe Avenue,
Mingquang Cty, Chuzhou Ciy, Anfui Province
BEREE h i ZHERMTRATHLKERET RERRA
5 FengyangNo. 1 Yard Chuzhou 100%  Residential 75,927.00 2021/04/09 711429 About 30 meters to the north of GaiZhuang resettement
community east of FuRen Road, Fengyang Gounty,
Chuzhou Cty, Anhui Province
BREh il i RAERNTRRER ARERE | E-RELY
3on
6 Bozhou Park Vila Bozhou 100%  Residential 65,805.30 200011210 1416479 Intersection of Xianweng Road and Xuelian Road,
Bozhou Economic Development Zong, Anhui
Province
giinEE 2 [ RHEENTAEREISRESELNA
7 Bozhou No. 1 Yard Bozhou 100%  Residential 86,154.60 2000112128 6,717.18  West of Jian'an Road and south of Fengwei River,
Bozhou Economic Development Zong, Anhui
Province
ek 2h iz REESNTERRERRLRIE BEANA

—E-—FFEHR =REREMARAR 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XK )
Land Bank (Continued) T (E)
Equity

attributable Actual/Estimated
tothe Sitearea  Construction Land bank

No. Project Name* City Group  Main proposed use (insq.m) Completion Date (insq.m)  Location
358 {E4ER BBt THEE
5% 2R%H it EltBs IZRERR (¥A:%) RHAH (Trk)  #t

8 BozhouBo's Mansion Bozhou 100%  Residentia 29,904.00 202012/31 871387 Intersection of Tangwang Avenue and Yangsheng
Avenue, Bozhou Economic Development Zone,
Anhui Province

EHEN 2h i ZHEENTRERAE AT NEERE RER A
9 Bozhou Platinum House Bozhou 0%  Residential 59,193.20 200111127 60,440.27  South sice of Mudan Road and west side of Xianweng
Road, Bozhou Economic Development Zong, Anhui
Province
SR 2 fz RE2NTEERERAAREN  (LSKE
10" Bozhou Park Ally Bozhou 48%  Residential 51,206.90 2022/06/30 89,517.11 South side of Mudan Road and west side of Xianweng
Road, Bozhou Economic Development Zong, Anhui
Province
SAER 2h [z redeTEEREEHAAEE  LS%ER
11 Bozhou Joy Mansion Bozhou 100%  Residentia 20523.80 2022111130 65,843.14  Intersection of South Shifu Road and Sancao Road,
Qlangeheng District, Bozhou City, Anhui Province
SR 2h [z FHAENmEAE TRER A= EARND
12 Bozhou Bofu Qingfeng Bozhou 3% Residential 50,162.00 202211202 138,062.82  West of Sancao Road and north of South Ciy Hall
Road, Bozhou City, Anhui Province
gizfmaf 2l i RHEENMZERIE  TRERNL
18 Lixin British Mansion Bozhou 100%  Residentil 53,188.00 2021/03/29 562.83  Intersection of Qlanjin Road and World Avenu,
Chengguan Town, Lixin County, Bozhou City, Anhui
Province
H*REE 2 [z REESN T ENBREREE RRER T
14" Lixin Platinum House Bozhou 60%  Residential 96,231.36 202312131 16967583 Intersection of Qianjin Road and World Avenue,
Chengguan Town, Lixin Gounty, Bozhou City, Anhui
Province
i & £z REAEITH AR R R AR
15 Lixin No. 1 Yard Bozhou 100%  Residentia 5744552 2020/08/25 141955 Intersection of Qianjin Road and World Avenue,
Chengguan Town, Lixin County, Bozhou City, Anhui
Province
HESSh 2h [z RREEN TR BRI R R ER N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES AE-17 )
Land Bank (Continued) T E)
Equity
attributable Actual/Estimated
tothe Sitearea  Construction Land bank
No. Project Name* City Group  Main proposed use (insq.m) Completion Date (insq.m)  Location
AEE bR RR/fhat 1HER
% mR 2R i Eiigs IEHERE (¥5%) ZHES (¥5R) it
16 Lixin Wenzhou House Bozhou 51%  Residentil 49,120.02 202112130 31,9950 About 70 meters to the northeast of Lixin County
First Middle Schoal, Century Avenug, Lixin Gounty,
Bozhou City, Anhui Province
HREESR zh i RHEEN AR Bt RN RS - ERIEY
108
17 Lixin Elegance Bozhou 55%  Residentil 88,996.95 2022/08/31 17497273 North side of Qianjin Road, Chengguan Town, Lixin
County, Bozhou City, Anhui Province
HEREAY 2l [z REEEN T BRI
18 Lixin State Guest Garden Bozhou 3% Residentia 04,825.42 2022/08/30 164,378.02 About 170m to the west of Bangtai Junlan State Hotel,
West Jinxiu Road, Lixin County, Bozhou Cty, Anhui
Province
H*aERER 2h iz Rt R R AR R RRE AR EER
0%
19 Guoyang Bangtal Terrtory Bozhou 30%  Residentia 84,4793 2022/05/30 211,361.05  Intersection of Yuying Road and Jinxiu Avenue, Fuyang
County, Bozhou Cty, Anhui Province
ABARLIE 2h =z rHeEhmRREERAERE D
20 Hefei Elegance Hefei 60%  Residentil 26,380.07 2021/06/30 18,137.80  Northeast comer of the intersection of Barrier Hil Road
and Yuxi Road, Yiaohal District, Hefel Cy, Anhui
Province
alffEE Ak [z R AR TERERIAEREARR IR A
21 Hefel Jade Orignt Hefei 30%  Residentil 59,233.09 2022112120 164,728.70 Intersection of Half Tower North Road and Fenglefing
Road, Yaonai District, Hefei City, Anhui Province
aREERS &l iz RHE AL AR A REBESHANA
22 Hefsi Cloud Garden Hefei 60%  Residentil 66,660.10 2003/12/31 163,158.21  Northeast comer of the intersection of Qishan Road and
Qilu Road, Chaohu Cty, Hefel, Anhui Province
AlZER Ak iz RHEREn AT AERERR N O A
23 Huainan Elegance Huainan 100%  Residentia 91,183.00 2023/12/31 250,693.86  Intersection of Chaoyang East Road and 206, Tianjiaan
District, Huainan Cty, Anhui Province
EBEEAY i =z RHE R TR RR AR RAEN0RER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) XK )
Land Bank (Continued) T (E)
Equity

attributable Actual/Estimated
tothe Sitearea  Construction Land bank

No. Project Name* Group  Main proposed use (insq.m) Completion Date (insq.m)  Location
AEE {E4ER BBt THEE
5% 2R%H EltBs IZRERR (¥A:%) RHAH (Trk)  #t

24 Huainan Academy No. 1 Huainan 3% Residential 49,622.40 200112131 2294578 Intersection of Yongle Road and Science Road,
Shushan Modern Industrial Park, Shou County,
Huainan Cty, Anhui Province

EBEHER i i PHERETRERIEREZEEAERENEAT
o
25 Fuyang Mandarin Upper Shire Fuyang 3% Residentia 102,492.00 2021/06/30 6,843.97  East sice of Fuxiao Road, south of Mengcheng Road,
Fuyang City, Anhui Province
EEXELY L i REERTRRERRARA RAFIARH
26 Thaihu Jinzhou House Anging 30%  Residentia 38,649.46 200211130 115,771.04  Behind the fire department on Chenfeng Road, Jind
Town, Taihu Gounty, Anqing City, Anhui Province
KHBEMR ol [z RHRRRTAMEEERRRREN S
27 Suzhou Guojian Elegance Suzhooy 30%  Residentia 3415570 2022/06/30 93207.64  Northeast comer of the intersection of Renmin Road

and South Quter Ring Road, Yonggiao District,
Suzhou City, Anhui Province

EhERRE i [z PHERNTRERARRERIMEARNRLA
28 Suzhou Lingbi Qingfeng Suzhooy 80%  Residentia 83,320.00 20221122 207,883.73  Northeast comer of the intersection of Yuj Avenue and
Bianhe Road, Lingbi County, Suzhou, Anhui Province
FiEZRE i £z RAEENTEEEREARE TR ORI A
29 Guangde Binhe Mansion Kuancheng 21%  Residentia 51,882.00 2022112131 129,007.64  Intersection of Nantang Road and Binhe Road,
Guangde Economic Development Zong, Xuancheng
City, Anhui Province
EEENER B [z PR R e
30 Liucheng County 06 Land Parcel Bengbu 87%  Residential 41,963.14 2022/08/30 106,665.36  West sice of Yinghe Road, south of Gaoxin Road,
(Gaoxin District, Bengbu City, Anhui Province
HERANER 2 i Rt SETRARR AR LTHAN
31 Liucheng County 05 Land Parcel Bengbu 87%  Residentil 32,008.47 2023007130 64,136.94  North of the intersection of Milk Spring Avenue and
Jingtu Road, Huaiyuan County, Bengbu City, Anhui
Province
Bigwots g2 £z R SET RSB AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES AE-17 )
Land Bank (Continued) T E)
Equity
attributable Actual/Estimated
tothe Sitearea  Construction Land bank
No. Project Name* Group  Main proposed use (insq.m) Completion Date (insq.m)  Location
AEE bR RR/fhat 1HER
i 2RER Eiigs IEHERE (¥5%) ZHES (¥5R) it
32 Liucheng County 04 Land Parcel Bengbu 87%  Residentil 04,9151 2024/06/30 12983102 North of the intersection of Mik Spring Avenue and
Jingtu Road, Huaiyuan County, Bengbu City, Anhui
Province
B 2 i RAEHETRREA R NBRARINOL
33 Ningyang Platinum House Ta'an 100%  Residential 76,186.00 2022/06/30 11531829 Southeast comer of the intersection of Jinyang Road
and Qingfeng Road, Ningyang County, Tar'an City,
Shandong Province
ERHR 5% [z IEESSGED S e ER Sl
34 Nanjing Fotume Shire Nanjing 51%  Residentia A.111.24 2022/06/15 61,144.85  Intersection of Renshou Road and Xine Road, Lukou
Town, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province
BRmsH BR iz THR¥ERTIERROACSRESIARND
35 Nanjing Joy Garden Nanjing 100%  Residentia 13475.95 202212131 26,899.30  No. 10, Kaiyue Road, Chunxi Town, Gaochun District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province
HRAGRE R 2 THERRT AR TREINA 108
36 Nanjing Upper Joy Garden Nanjing 30%  Residential 723243 2021/09/29 1599347 Hong Yang Shang Shang Yuet Yuan, the junction of Pu

Zhu North Road and Hua Jiang Road, Pukou District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province

BRRLHE R [ THERRTANE R ARETRRRR IR
it
37 Nanjing Joy River South Nanjing 100%  Residentil 10,665.36 2022/05/30 18,693.18  No. 56, Nan Yi Road, Chunxi Town, Gao Chun District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province
BRAGILE B fz THEB R AR EEERRRo0H
38 Nanjing Elegance Nanjing 100%  Residentil 39,288.32 202210131 78,369.9  South of Baota Road and west of Shiyuhu South
Road, Chunxi Town, Gaochun Distrct, Nanjing Cy,
Jiangsu Province
HRiEE BR iz THEERDR R TEREIANE  RAMERN
]
39 Wi Xinghuiyuan Woxi 31%  Residentia 63,182.00 20040129 181,897.41  Sales Depariment of Jiyang Shiguang, Xingiao Tow,
Jlangyin City, Wi City, Jiangsu Province
8528 L7 =z THEEATIETHERERR L EEY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (KB @)
Land Bank (Continued) T (E)
Equity
attributable Actual/Estimated
tothe Sitearea  Construction Land bank
No. Project Name* Group  Main proposed use (insq.m) Completion Date (insq.m)  Location
AEE {ERER RR/fhst 1HER
% mR 2R Eligs IERERE (¥5%) THES (¥5%) it
40 Wux Xingguangyuan Wi 3% Residentia 29,085.00 202310310 108,03243  Sales Department of Jiyang Shiquang, Xingjao Town,
Jiangyin City, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province
BRERE L7 =z THREERTLETHERERR L EEY
41 W Lanjing Yayuan Wi 51%  Residential 16,905.00 202300517 45,7400 East of Fukang Road, Fugjan West Strest South, Gu
Shan Town, Jiangyin, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province
ERRERR k7 £ THERGTTRELARIEGRRIARA
42 Wuxi Donggang Land Parcel Woxi 710%  Residential 1567400 2023/12/30 4852400 West of Liangun Road, South of Innovation West Road,
Donggang Town, Xishan District, Wuxi Cly, Jiangsu
Province
BRFAA 5 [z RS R AR R AR MEREREAE
43 Chuzhou Feicui Xian Chuzhou 3% Residentia 36,740.00 202311730 90,148.08  No.9, Changjiang Road, Langya District, Chuzhou City,
Anhui Province
MizzEs B =z U RNTREERLERGE
44 Changzhou Peninula Mission Hils - Changzhou 65%  Residentia 49,903.00 202412130 132,391.00  North side of Labor East Road and west side of Douhe
River, Changzhou Economic Development Zong,
Jiangsu Province
EHEER B [z THERNTEERAEAIRANY  ERE
Sub-otal st 3672,7712.57

Projects developed by our associate

R S
1 Hefel Yushu Xinzhu assocate 17.34%  Residential 67,8342 2022/05/31 21,752.94  Southeast comer of the intersection of Huaihai Avenue
and Qianling Road, Yaohai District, Hefei City, Anhui
Province
EEMRE B =z FHEAETEAR S NEENERR N NRAA
Sub-fotal It 2775094
Total it 3,100,525.51

“Note: three projects which have been entirely sold and delivered are not included — “#f:# : =EE2MPE L RRIMHBEE LARMALRF ©
in the table.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue during the Reporting Period consisted of
revenue derived from sales of properties. Revenue of the Group
increased by 42.3% from approximately RMB3,946.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB5,616.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to
the increase of delivered GFA for the year ended 31 December
2021. The total aggregate GFA recognised increased from
579,817 sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 768,605
sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2021 primarily due to
more properties completed and delivered for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue recognised,
aggregate GFA delivered and recognised ASP by property types
for the periods indicated:

Bt % B

WA
REBRBREHEANKRABREREMEES
R - AEE /KA BB ZE2020F12 A
B1TAIEFENHARKESM46.1EHE LGN
42 3% EEE2021F12 831 B IEFEEHHA
R¥5616.6B8IT ' TEHNREE2021F
1231 B IEFEMNERTBZETMIBEILMN -
HZE2021 F12A31BILLFE EHEIANER
BEmMBHRE E2020F12 A31 B IEFEEH
579,817 F F KIEINZ=768,605F FK » £&
HREHE2021F12A31BIEFEER TR
AR LN o

TREFR A RAEARE R ERSE S
MERBUA - EXM HBREEERE R
REFHER -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12B31ALEE
2021 2020
GFA  Recognised Recognised GFA  Recognised  Recognised
delivered revenue ASP delivered revenue ASP
2021 2020
BERH [BY;:£ B} BRI B2 B2
BEAE WA FHER BEHE LON TIER
sq.m. RMB’000 (RMB/sq.m.) Sq.m. RMB'000  (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR%/ (ARE/
AR  ARETR FAK) Ak AREFT FhHA)
Residential fFE 694,122 5,222,167 7,523 535,793 3,549,223 6,624
Commercial [GES 22,775 281,202 12,347 33,777 378,346 11,201
Carparks and underground storage {2535 Jith M #RE0
space!! 51,708 113,277 2,191 10,247 18,622 1,808
Total @ 768,605 5,616,646 7,308 579,817 3,946,091 6,806
Note: KaF -
1) Includes non-saleable carparks for which the Group transferred the right of (1) BREASEREARERTREPONTALEREE
use to customers. ¥ o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales primarily represents the costs incurred
directly associated with the property development activities.
The principal components of the Group’s cost of sales includes
construction and labor costs, land use rights costs and capitalised
interest costs on related borrowings for the purpose of property
development during the period of construction.

The cost of sales of the Group increased by 62.9% from
approximately RMB2,881.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB4,693.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was due to the increase in the
delivery of properties during the Reporting Period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group decreased by 13.3% from approximately
RMB1,065.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB923.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 primarily due to the increase of cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Our gross profit margin decreased to 16.4% for the year ended
31 December 2021, as compared to 27.0% for the year ended
31 December 2020 primarily because of (i) the completion and
delivery of Bozhou Platinum House, Nanjing Upper Joy Garden
and Hefei Elegance with a relatively low gross profit margin; (ii)
the cost overruns of several projects determined at the period of
the settlements with suppliers; and (iii) an impairment provision
on inventories due to the continuing downturn in the real estate
industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains primarily consist of interest
income, forfeiture of deposits and others. Interest income primarily
includes interest income on bank deposits. Forfeiture of deposits
primarily represents forfeited deposits received from certain
homebuyers who did not subsequently enter into pre-sales/sales
contracts with the Group and penalties received from certain
customers due to their breach of sales or pre-sales contracts with
the Group.

Other income and gains of the Group increased by 15.3% from
approximately RMB12.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB14.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to the increase of interest income
on bank deposit.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of sales
commissions, advertising, marketing and business development
expenses, staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, office
expenses, rent, travel and others.

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by 10.5%
from approximately RMB200.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB221.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily due to increased
promotion and marketing activities for the Group’s projects.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of staff costs, hospitality
cost, office expenses, travel, rental, tax and professional fees.

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 4.0% from
approximately RMB188.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB196.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to a continuous expansion in the
Group’s business scale.

Other Expenses

Other expenses primarily consist of bad debt losses, penalties,
donation, exchange loss and others. Other expenses of the Group
remained relatively stable at approximately RMB16.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and approximately RMB16.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

B 7% 5] (4)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest on loans and other
borrowings and interest on pre-sales deposits, net of interest
capitalised.

Finance costs of the Group increased by 81.0% from
approximately RMB22.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB40.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to an increase in interest charged
on borrowings before official commencement of construction of
the project.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses represent corporate income tax, income tax
and land appreciation tax (“LAT”) payable by subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC.

Income tax expenses of the Group decreased by 32.3% from
approximately RMB275.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB186.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to a decrease in LAT for the year
resulting from a lower amount of income tax payable and a lower
gross profit margin caused by the decrease in the Group’s profit
before tax.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a profit of
approximately RMB258.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, and the profit of approximately RMB367.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The Group operated in a capital-intensive industry and financed
the Group’s working capital, capital expenditure and other capital
requirements primarily through cash generated from operations
including proceeds from the pre-sales of its properties, as well as
bank and other borrowings, which were typically designated for
specific construction and projects of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES (continued)

Following the continuous expansion of property portfolio of the
Group, it is expected the saleable GFA of the Group will continue
to increase from which the Group expects to generate additional
operating cash. The Group intends to continue to monitor its
development and construction schedules, property sales and
land acquisition plans based on the cash inflow associated with
existing and planned external financing opportunities, including
but not limited to the issuance of corporate bonds or other debt
offerings and property sales proceeds.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB1,694.1 million (31 December 2020:
RMB2,241.8 million), which primarily consisted of restricted cash,
pledged deposit and cash and cash equivalents.

Current ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities were RMB16,689.3 million and RMB14,356.4 million (31
December 2020: RMB16,477.3 million and RMB14,342.0 million),
respectively. The Group’s current ratio was calculated based on
its total current assets divided by its total current liabilities as
at the respective dates. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
current ratio was 1.2 times (31 December 2020: 1.1 times).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total indebtedness,
including bank loans and other borrowings, amounted to
approximately RMB1,598.9 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB2,096.5 million).

REES  BEREXRER@)

BEASEMEAS THER Bt AKE
AHEREAmMESSEELN  AEEEH
AP ESRIMEERS - ASERENSE
RAE NGBS IRERE (RIBETRNET
NAEESFKBTHMBER)BENRSRAR
MEHREMEHR  FESFEAERETE
B&K - MEHE R KRERTE -

WA

R2021F12A831H - AEBERES RRTT
KA BAREE,604.15 87T (2020512 A 31
H: AR¥224185E8L) EXZEBVEXR
HEE  BEERAGERURRERRSEEY -

B &

R2021F12H31H - AEENRDEE R
mBEES R AAREK16,680.38 &Ltk A
R#14,356.48 &7t (2020F12A31H : A
R¥16,477 3B B LR ARK14,34208 8
T0) c AKEMRE L ERTIEE RN AR B
MRS EERQBERARBDEBERETE - X
2021 12H318 ' XEEHREBEERZ1.2
£ (2020128318 : 1.1£%) »

i

/

£

R2021F 128310 AEBEFHEHBE
(BREBTEXRREMER)QOARKK1,598.9
BEIT(2020F12A31H : S AR¥2,006.5
BET) °

—REREESRAR 27

T —FFH



LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL NBEE  UBRELFER@
RESOURCES (Continued)

Indebtedness (Continued) B (&)

The following table sets forth the components of the Group’s  F&RHJIAEBERF/R B HAESHEED
indebtedness as at the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Current Borrowings B HA & 5K
Bank loans — secured RITE N — I 646,224 114,000
Other loans — secured® HEmER—BHEEO 712,033 942,326
Other loans — unsecured® H M E R~ O 13,867 8,972
Total Current Borrowings BUVERfE SR 4258 1,372,124 1,065,298
Non-Current Borrowings EFIRGEEE
Bank loans — secured RITER—FEM 226,750 794,220
Other loans — secured™ HEER - BHEEO - 236,934
Total Non-Current Borrowing JEBNHAE R aaga 226,750 1,031,154
Total et 1,598,874 2,096,452
Notes: et -
(1) These borrowings are mainly in the form of trust and assets management (1) ZEEREBUERCIREREBREEETER
financing arrangements with trust financing providers and asset AV EAREEEERETH U RENT R
management companies, and other financing arrangements with companies BUE=FBEATIHEMRE LIRS -

and independent third party individuals.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES (continued)

Indebtedness (Continued)

The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group’s
bank and other borrowings as at the dates indicated:

REES  BEREXRER@)

&% (4)
TREHAEERAHAR A RRTREAMBER
COEIEICPAE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Repayable within one year BER—FRNEERE 1,372,124 1,065,298
Repayable in the second year BRE_FEE 226,750 1,031,154
Total @t 1,598,874 2,096,452
Gearing Ratio BAREBELE

The net gearing ratio was at a net cash position which was
calculated by dividing the net of interest-bearing liabilities minus
cash and bank balances (including restricted cash, pledged
deposits and cash equivalents) by the total equity was at a net
cash position as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: at a
net cash position).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness
of a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The Group
had no significant concentrations of credit risk in view of its
large number of customers. The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which mainly comprises restricted cash, pledged
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, and amounts
due from related parties, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Directors do not expect any material losses from
non-performance of these counterparties.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES (continued)

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group mainly operates its business in the PRC, and all of its
revenue and expenses are substantially denominated in Renminbi,
while the net proceeds from the Listing is payable in Hong Kong
dollar. As at 31 December 2021, among the Group’s cash at
bank and on hand, only RMB1.2 million was denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and was subject to fluctuation of the exchange rate.
The Group does not have any policy to hedge against foreign
exchange risk. However, the Group will closely monitor its foreign
exchange exposure, and strive to maintain the value of the
Group’s cash.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
exposure to changes in market interest rates is mainly attributable
to its interest-bearing loans and other borrowings. The Group had
not used derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate
risk, and obtained all bank borrowings and other borrowings with
fixed rates. The Directors do not anticipate significant impacts
to interest-bearing assets resulting from the changes in interest
rates, because the interest rates of cash equivalents are not
expected to change significantly.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are secured by the pledges of the Group’s assets
with carrying values of approximately RMB4,275.0 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB4,060.5 million) which mainly
include properties under development.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect
of the mortgage loans they provided to customers of the Group
in order to secure the repayment obligations of such customers.
The mortgage guarantees are issued from the execution of the
mortgage guarantee contract up until (i) two years after the
maturity of the bank borrowings and mortgages in the event of
customer’s default; or (ii) the registration of the mortgage are
completed. If a purchaser defaults on the mortgage loan, the
Group is typically required to repurchase the underlying property
by paying off the mortgage loan. If the Group fails to do so, the
mortgagee banks will auction the underlying property and recover
the balance from the Group if the outstanding loan amount
exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds. In line with industry
practice, the Group does not conduct independent credit checks
on its customers but rely on the credit checks conducted by the
mortgagee banks.

The following table sets forth the Group’s total guarantees as at
the dates indicated:

REES  BEREXRER@)

FRBE
AEERBRITRHTAREEFZERBER
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MBETEZNRTERRZBIBERON
FUNBEFREL) : R(NVRBHOZEMAY © i
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TREINNFARARAEENERERE

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Guarantees given to banks in AETAEEMEERNE
connection with facilities granted to RARITIEL 2 B R
purchasers of the Group’s properties 6,774,905 7,084,443
Total Het 6,774,905 7,084,443
Capital Commitment B EIE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital commitment it
had contracted but yet provided for was RMB2,809.4 million,
compared to RMB4,146.1 million as at 31 December 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE
GROUP

During the Reporting Period and as at 31 December 2021, there
were no significant investments held by the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no significant
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and this report, there was no any
plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at 31 December 2021.

THE GLOBAL OFFERING

On 19 July 2021, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Company received net proceeds (after
deduction of underwriting commissions and related costs and
expenses) from the Global Offering as defined in the Prospectus
(including the partial exercise of over-allotment options as
described in the Prospectus and the announcement of the
Company dated 11 August 2021) of approximately HK$773.5
million (the “Net Proceeds”).

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any material
change to the planned use and expected timeline of the Net
Proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE GLOBAL OFFERING (continued)

An analysis of the planned usage of the Net Proceeds as stated in
the Prospectus and the actual utilisation of the Net Proceeds for
the Reporting Period are set out as below:

BEEESNW R DM

2IRBE (@)
HWRRSRFROREREFE B8R
DA TR 3R 45 HARS BT 15 S0 IE R 2 B (E AR
ST

Actual use of
Net Proceeds

Percentage of Intended for the Net
total Net allocation of Reporting Proceeds
Proceeds  Net Proceeds Period unused  Expected timeline
qE
Planned usage of BRERML f R 3 g N3l
Net Proceeds as stated B et FEL FRER FiEsE
in the Prospectus fTElRG BENR FERER j EHREE
(Note)
(i35
HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
BEAT BEATL BEAT
To finance the construction costs  AEAEE RENEER A 60% 4641 4641 - Fully utilised
for the development of our RtEe 2HER
existing projects
To fund the land acquisition BIilEREES BB 30% 232.0 232.0 - Fully utilised
to increase our land bank ESRERAHMNE 2RMER
by seeking and acquiring EENMIRE A EHOHE
land parcels or suitable BeEnamnn e e
merger and acquisition
opportunities that mest
our internal criteria
General working capital e 10% 774 774 - Fully utiised
2R
Total @t 100% 7735 7735 -
Note:  The Net Proceeds from the Listing, after deduction of the underwriting Ktz FTHRREIIEEE  KHBRARRRIM S

fees and commissions and other listing expenses paid by the Company in
connection therewith, were approximately HK$700.3 million. The actual Net
Proceeds received by the Company were approximately HK$773.5 million
after the partial exercise of the over-allotment option (for details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 August 2021). The
Company intends to apply the difference of approximately HK$73.2 million
to the planned usage in the same proportion as originally allocated in the
Prospectus.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

No material events were undertaken by the Group subsequent to
31 December 2021 and up to this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 779 employees (31
December 2020: 847). The Group offers its employees competitive
remuneration packages that include salary, bonus and various
allowances. The Group also contributes to social insurance
for its employees, including medical insurance, work-related
injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance and housing funds. The Group had also
implemented a variety of training programs for its employees at
different levels on a regular basis to meet different requirements
and emphasise individual initiative and responsibility.

The Directors and members of the senior management receive
compensation from the Group in the form of salaries, bonuses and
other benefits in kind such as share option award, contributions
to pension plans. The Board will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors and
senior management, and will receive recommendation from the
remuneration committee of the Board which will take into account
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no amount
was paid to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. In addition, no
compensation was paid to the Directors or past Directors for the
same period in connection with the loss of office as a director of
any member of the Group or of any other office in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors or the five highest
paid employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Except for the Company’s Global Offering (including the partial
exercise of over-allotment options), the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed
securities of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and to the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRSAREEEBRN

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qian Kun (82), aged 45, is one of the founders of our Group.
He was appointed as our Director on November 23, 2018, and
re-designated as our executive Director and the chairman of our
Board on 5 September 2019. He is responsible for the leadership,
overall strategic planning and major decision making of our
Group. Mr. Qian is a seasoned entrepreneur with over 16 years of
experience in the real estate industry. Mr. Qian is the spouse of
Ms. An. Mr. Qian, together with Ms. An, started engaging in real
estate development and other property related business through
Anhui Sanxun Investment Group Co., Ltd. (X =R EELBARE
‘AA]) (the “Anhui Sanxun Investment”) in 2004. Capitalizing on
their experience in the real estate industry, Chuzhou Sanxun Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (BRI =RE B R A 7)) (the “Chuzhou Sanxun”)
was established in 2010 as a regional company for our property
development projects, which has grown to become one of our
major subsidiaries and the centralized management platform of
our property development projects.

Mr. Qian has been the executive vice president of Anhui
Commerce Association of Real Estate (Z#%& B ER ) since
April 2019 and the vice president of Anhui Bo Culture Institute
(ZHEZXLES) since August 2017. Mr. Qian obtained a
diploma in industrial and civil architecture from Hefei University
of Technology (AIET % KXE) in the PRC in July 2000 and a
certificate of completion in Real Estate Business Administration
Executive Officer class from Fudan University (€ B AZ2) in the
PRC in December 2009 through part-time learning.
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DIR ECTO RS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. An Juan (Z18), aged 44, is one of the founders of our Group.
She was appointed as our Director on 23 November 2018, and
re-designated as our executive Director, president and chief
executive officer on 5 September 2019. She is responsible for
the overall management of the business operations of our Group.
Beginning with Anhui Sanxun Investment, Ms. An has over 16
years of experience in the real estate industry. As the business
expanded under the leadership of Mr. Qian and Ms. An, Chuzhou
Sanxun was set up in March 2010. Upon the establishment of
Chuzhou Sanxun, Ms. An served as the supervisor of Chuzhou
Sanxun from March 2010 to March 2014 and the executive
director and the manager of Chuzhou Sanxun since March 2014
and she resigned as manger in April 2021. She has also assumed
multiple directorships in our subsidiaries, including Mingguang
Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (FAX =R BZ AR A7) (the
“Mingguang Sanxun”) since its establishment in November 2015
and Bozhou Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EM =B EHFRE A 7))
(the “Bozhou Sanxun”) since its establishment in July 2016. Ms.
An is also the supervisor of Anhui Sanxun Investment when it was
established in 2004 but has since assumed a non-executive role.

Ms. An obtained a diploma in accounting and statistics
(computerization) from Hefei University of Technology (& fE T X
&) in the PRC in July 2000 and she is now pursuing an executive
master of business administration at Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (£ )T 7 £Ft) in the PRC. Ms. An is the spouse
of Mr. Qian.

Mr. Wang Zizhong (£ ¥ ), aged 49, was appointed as our
executive Director on 5 September 2019. Mr. Wang is responsible
for the overall management of our subsidiaries located in
Anhui Province. Mr. Wang has over 11 years of experience in
construction and real estate industries. He joined our Group in
March 2010 as a project general manager in Chuzhou Sanxun
and was promoted to the position of general manager in August
2012 and vice president in May 2018. He is serving as a director
in several of our subsidiaries including Chuzhou Jiarui Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (BN EHKXEZRE AR A a]) (the
“Chuzhou Jiarui”) and Lixin Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (F]F &
=REZEAHRAA) (the “Lixin Sanxun”).

Mr. Wang obtained a diploma in building construction and

management from The Open University of China (B A Z) in
the PRC in July 2017.
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D|RECTO RS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Xiaohui (£ B #8), aged 47, was appointed as our
executive Director on 5 September 2019. Mr. Zhang joined our
Group as a vice president of Chuzhou Sanxun in March 2014
and is responsible for cost management of our Group as well
as our property development projects located in the cities of
Chuzhou, Hefei, Huainan and Anging in Anhui Province. He is
serving as a director in several of our subsidiaries including Lixin
Sanxun Jiantou Real Estate Co., Ltd. (FIFFEZ=ERBELAR
‘A A]) (the “Lixin Sanxun Jiantou”). Mr. Zhang has over 26 years
of business management experience. Prior to joining our Group,
he was the deputy director of Anhui Dingcheng Certified Public
Accountants (Z R E TR EEFT) (currently known as Anhui
Tongsheng Certified Public Accountants Ltd. (X R & &M%
AT EBR A A))) from August 1995 to July 2001, where he provided
engineering costs consultation services. From August 2001 to
June 2009, he served as the deputy manager of the engineering
audit center of Huapu Tianjian Certified Public Accountants (3£
KIBSETRIEBET (R EBRE®) LR D FN) and was responsible
for technical review of engineering costs and consultation
business. From July 2009 to January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as
a cost manager of Hefei Winbond Group Co., Ltd. (& BEEFEE
BRRA 7)) and was responsible for the cost management of the
group. He became the general manager of the Chuzhou branch of
Hefei Winbond Group Co., Ltd. from November 2012 to February
2014, where he was responsible for project management in the
city of Chuzhou in Anhui Province.

Mr. Zhang has been the rotating director of Anhui Commerce
Association of Real Estate (&4 B HIE K ®) since April 2019. He
obtained a bachelor degree in construction engineering from Anhui
Jianzhu and Engineering College (Z#UEE T 2 2[7) (currently
known as Anhui Jianzhu University (Z & KE)) in July 1995.
Mr. Zhang obtained a certificate of certified public valuer from the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (% A R MBI BE) in 1999
and a lawyer qualification and a certificate in legal practice from
the Ministry of Justice (A2 A R FEFEF)%EB) and Department
of Justice of Anhui Province (Z#%& 8))AE2) in 2001 and 2003,
respectively. He was accredited as a cost engineer by the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC (2 A R FAFMEI 2R EE) (currently known
as the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Department of the PRC
(FPEARLFMBEFEMZELIR) in 2001. He was also accredited
as a registered consulting engineer, a real estate appraiser and
a registered constructor by the Personnel Department of Anhui
Province (Z & A EE) in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
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DIR ECTO RS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (BR¥E), aged 42, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 5 September 2019 and he
is responsible for providing independent advice on the operations
and management of our Group. Mr. Chan has over 15 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
Mr. Chan served as an assistant accountant of Oriental Resource
Enterprises Limited in Hong Kong from June 2006 to July 2007
where he was responsible for handling accounting, taxation
and company secretarial matters, trading documentation and
other related matter. From August 2007 to February 2011, Mr.
Chan successively worked in the assurance department of Grant
Thornton and BDO Limited, with his last position as an assistant
manager in assurance. From May 2019 to April 2020, Mr. Chan
served as the chief financial officer of Heysea International Yachts
Company Limited (8 £ B 2 AR A 7). In addition, Mr. Chan
currently holds or had held directorships and senior positions in
the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange:

Stock Code

kWi

Leader Education Limited 1449

URHERRAR

Centenary United Holdings Limited 1959

A ERAR AT

Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High Technology 8301
Corporation Limited

A TREREMBEBRNDARAF

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited 8086
(formerly known as DX. com Holdings Limited)

74 BB BR A IR 2 7] (AT RS 23DX.comiZ A
ARAR)
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Position and Period of Time

B R ERFH

Independent non-executive director
July 2020 to present
BUFNTES
H202057RZE5

Joint company secretary
January 2019 to present

ENRIME
H201951RZE45

- Non-executive director
From September 2016 to April 2018 and
January 2019 to March 2019
-ERITES
B2016F9AE2018F4A K
E201951 A E201943 A

— Executive director and chief financial officer
From April 2018 to January 2019
-HOEFRERVBE
BE2018F4 A Z2019% 1A

- Independent non-executive director
From August 2017 to September 2018
-BUFMTES
B201748 2201859

- Company secretary
From January 2019 to May 2019
~NAIME B2019F1 B £20194F5A



D|RECTO RS (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in accountancy, a bachelor of
arts in accountancy and a master degree in corporate governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006,
December 2007 and October 2013, respectively. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
certified public accountant (practicing).

Mr. Chen Sheng (FR&), aged 49, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 5 September 2019 and he
is responsible for providing independent advice on the operations
and management of our Group. Mr. Chen has rich experience
and market insight in the PRC real estate industry. Mr. Chen was
the consultant of the Finance and Accounting Study Committee
of China Society for Finance and Banking (T E4 &2 4 @4k
SHFZEEEZ EE) from July 2014 to July 2016. Mr. Chen is the
chairman of the China Real Estate Data Academy (7 E/& i &
EETZEBR), a professional urban development and real estate
research institution which focuses on analytical research on the
developments of the real estate industry in the major cities in the
PRC. He currently also serves as the executive director of the
China Real Estate Research Association (Bl EHIE %1 E).

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in material science and
engineering inorganic non-metallic materials from Tongji University
(R KXE) in the PRC in July 1995 and a master degree in
business administration from Fudan University in the PRC in
January 2004.

EE )

L=

BUIFERTEF(H)

PR S 4 5 BI A 2006 512 B ~ 200712 A &
2013F1I0AMBEABIALESHESE
XE - BrENELBENRARERBELS

- FREESAMASGERNESTA -

BB L - 495 © N2019F9ASHESZEA
BUNTES  BERAEBNEERE
BREBIYER BRELERPBREEHETE
HELELBBEBEAMBREN - K20145F
7TRE2016F 78 MELEATRHERETS
BT REE XL E RN - REEATEH
Bt ESIE MRt & - & B R i E BUR
RxABTMERNEHESENTKE =
ER B E B TR ET ¥ B E N SURH
R FHRENETTFEEEERTRNTE
$ o

PR 5T A 19954 7 A BRAS B[R B R 24 L
BhEEIES B TRE+ 286 KR2004
F1ARSHREEERETEHERBEIE4 -

—REREESRAR 39

T —FFH



DIR ECTO RS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Zhou Zejiang (FA##), aged 38, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 2 October 2019 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations
and management of our Group. He has over 10 years of
experience in accounting and finance management. Since June
2011, Mr. Zhou has been teaching accounting in Anhui University
(ZHBIKE) in the PRC. He first joined Anhui University as a lecturer
from June 2011 to November 2013. He then became an associate
professor from December 2013 to November 2017 and has been
a professor since December 2017. Mr. Zhou has served as an
independent director of Earth-Panda Advanced Magnetic Material
Co., Ltd. (ZRHARHRRF M A% 15 B BR A 7)) since December 2015.
In addition, Mr. Zhou Zejiang holds directorships in the following
listed companies:

Place of Listing
and Stock Code
i R AR R

Name of Entity
ERLHE

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange
(stock code: 000868)
RINFBHR N

(B3 H5% : 000868)

Anhui Ankai Automobile Co., Ltd.
(ZRZINTERNBERADT)
ZHRHAERNERAT

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange
(stock code: 000619)
RINBHR ST
(B 1A 5% - 000619)

Wuhu Conch Profiles And Science Co., Ltd.
ERERAM B RN BRA )
HRGRAMBER M ARA R

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange
(stock code: 002136)
RINBHR ST
(5% : 002136)

Anhui Annada Titanium Industry Co., Ltd.
(RERWERERDER QA
ZRHZWMEREROARDE
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Position and Period of Time

B R EREH

Independent director January 2015 to August 2020
B EE2015F1 A E20205F8 A

Independent director April 2015 to April 2021
BUEE2015F4AZE2021F4 A

Independent director January 2016 to April 2020
B EF2016F1 A E20205F4 A



DIRECTORS (continued) = Em)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued) B IEHITES (&)

Place of Listing

Name of Entity and Stock Code Position and Period of Time

ERLHE Fr B R R AR BARERSFH

Anhui Anke Biotechnology (Group) Co., Ltd. Shenzhen Stock Independent director November 2016 to
(ZRHEYNTR(EE)RHERAF) Exchange December 2019

ZRAEY TR (KE)RHERLRF (stock code: 300009) B EE20165F11 AE2019F12A

FYEHZ ST
(Pt A5 © 300009)

Earth-Panda Advance Magnetic Material Shanghai Stock Independent director March 2016 to present

Co., Ltd. Exchange B EF2016F3AES
(RRARHBTRIRD B R A F) (stock code: 688077)
TR BT RHRG AR A ] FBEFRG

(5% - 688077)

GuoYuan Securities Co., Ltd. Shenzhen Stock Independent directordanuary 2020 to present
(BTEERHERD ) Exchange B EF2020F1 825
Bl 7R AR AR (stock code: 000728)

FYEHZ ST
(B HR5% - 000728)

Anhui Xinhua Distribution Group Holding Shanghai Stock Independent director October 2020 to present
Co., Ltd. Exchange B EE2020F10A RS

(RRFEEERNBRAR) (stock code: 601801)

ZHMEEREROBRAF FEBERZ M

(Prfa 5% - 601801)

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor degree in accounting from  FEE4AR2005F7 AREFHEERGER e
Changchun Taxation College (K&EMEELR) in the PRC in July  :FE2E4 867 o FSL AT B 200846 A &
2005. Mr. Zhou also obtained a master degree in accounting and a 201146 A EV{Er Bl [E P K 2 & =+ 58 + £
doctor in accounting from Xiamen University (EF9K&) in the PRC @it B4 &7 o

in June 2008 and June 2011, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Baolin (BRE ), aged 54, is responsible for the overall
financial management of our Group. He joined our Group in
February 2011 as a finance officer of Chuzhou Sanxun and was
appointed as the director of finance management center of our
Group in May 2017. Mr. Chen has over 28 years of experience in
the real estate industry with a focus in financial management. Prior
to joining our Group, he worked in Chuzhou Jinhuang Real Estate
Company (KM & FHER R AR from July 1993 to January
2011 with his last position as the chief accountant. Mr. Chen
Baolin obtained a diploma in auditing from Anhui Commercial
College (ZHEEHRIEE) in the PRC in July 1993 and graduated
in auditing through a correspondence course from Nanjing Audit
University (B Rz B2 (currently known asf RZE T AKE)) in
the PRC in July 2004. Mr. Chen obtained the qualification as an
accountant in May 1998 accredited by the Ministry of Personnel of
the PRC (2 AR EFBI AEE) (currently known as the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (FRZE A R £
B A ST EIRFIT 2 REZF)).

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

On 14 December 2021, Mr. Chang Eric Jackson has tendered
his resignation as the chief financial officer of the Company and
the company secretary of the Company due to his intention to
devote more time to his personal development, and Mr. Zhang Ya
and Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan have been appointed to replace Mr.
Chang as the joint company secretaries and Ms. Cheung has been
appointed to replace Mr. Chang as the authorized representative
of the Company with effect from 14 December 2021. For further
details, please refer to the announcement dated 14 December
2021.

Mr. Zhang Ya (5&E2) has been the accounting manager of the
Group since 2019 and is responsible for the day-to-day regional
financial accounting and reporting matters of the Group, such
as the management of the budget and financial reporting of the
Company and handling listing compliance matters of the Group.
Mr. Zhang Ya has 15 years of experience in accounting and
finance work. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang Ya worked
as a deputy accounting and finance manager in Sinopec Jiangsu
Oil Field Branch (FE AL/ LE BB S A A]) from July 2007 to
December 2012. From March 2013 to November 2018, he had
worked in Chongging Huayuan Investment Co., Ltd. (EEZFR
A BREMT AR and had been responsible for the financial
accounting matters of that company.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES (continued)

Mr. Zhang Ya obtained a Bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Anhui University of Technology (Z# T %KX
&) in 2007. He has also acquired an intermediate accounting
professional qualification issued by Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security and Ministry of Finance in the PRC in 2018 and
obtained a certificate of accounting professional issued by Anhui
Provincial Department of Finance in the PRC in 2006.

Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan (3R B %) is a director of Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited, Asia’s leading business expansion
specialist. Ms. Cheung has over 31 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial field. She has been providing professional
corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies.

Ms. Cheung is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly “Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries”) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
“The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators”) in the
United Kingdom.

Ms. Cheung obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy
from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as City University
of Hong Kong) in November 1993.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

1. Mr. Chan Ngai Fan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 8239)
with effect from 1 January 2022 and Contel Technology
Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1912) with effect from 2 March
2022, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, during the year and up to the date of
this report, there is no other change in information of Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in developing and selling
properties in cities in Anhui Province and other cities in the
Yangtze River Delta Region in the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue and operating results for the year ended 31 December
2021 by its principal activities is set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on page 101 in this
report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” section of this report
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group on pages 93 to 94 of this
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development during the year are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 8 and pages 10 to 34,
respectively, of this report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental protection
policies, performance and relationships with employees,
customers, suppliers and major stakeholders are set out below
in this directors’ report. Particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 227 in this report. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 34 of this
report.
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s operations involve certain risks, some of which are
beyond its control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i)
risks relating to its business; (i) risks relating to the industry; and
(iii) risks relating to the PRC.

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) risks
related to the performance of the economic conditions in the PRC
and the PRC property markets; (ii) uncertainty as to identifying
desirable locations or acquiring land use rights for future property
development on favorable terms; (iii) uncertainty as to obtaining
sufficient funding for land acquisitions and future developments
and capital resources may not be available on favorable terms; (iv)
risks related to the fluctuation of profitability of property projects;
(v) risks related to the government policies and regulations
regarding the PRC property industry; and (vi) risks related to the
increasing raw materials price and labor costs.

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Group are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting
a sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the
Group strives to minimise its environmental impact and comply
with the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The measures it takes to ensure its compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include:

(i) strictly selecting construction contractors and supervising
the process of construction;

(if) applying for review by the relevant government authorities
in a timely manner after the project is completed; and

(i) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment
and designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions
with respect to environmental protection and make
energy conservation and emission reduction as primary
considerations when designing its property projects.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or
penalties associated with the breach of any environmental laws or
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2021. The 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group shall
be published separately.
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BUS'NESS REVIEW (Continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with the
Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group’s subsidiaries are mainly incorporated in the PRC. The
Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China

Its establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report, the Group has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the PRC and Hong
Kong that have a significant impact on the Group.

Relationship with Employees

The Group places emphasis on human capital and strives to
create an environment that enables employees to develop their
full potential and assists them in their personal and professional
development. The Group provides a fair and safe workplace,
promotes diversity among its employees, offers competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their achievements and performance, and makes
continuous efforts to provide employees with comprehensive
training and development resources to attract and retain skilled
and talented employees from reputable universities of PRC.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the
Group’s businesses. The Group reinforces business partnerships
with suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive and
effective manner.

Relationship with Customers

The Group's customers are primarily individual buyers and
corporate entities. Customer satisfaction with our services and
products has a profound impact on our profitability. The Group
values customer feedback on its products, its dedicated sales
team is in constant communication with its customers and
potential customers to identify customers’ pain points alongside
grasping the market trend, thus helping the Group to timely adjust
our operating strategies to fit the market requirement.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to pay a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. In respect of
Company, the Company had approximately RMB790.2 million
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2021.
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DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB1.3 million.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 96
in this report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to

the date of this report were:
Name of director Position
Mr. Qian Kun (Chairman)
Ms. An Juan

Mr. Wang Zizhong
Mr. Zhang Xiaohui

Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Mr. Chen Sheng
Mr. Zhou Zejiang
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan

Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

The Company at the general meeting at which a Director retires
may fill the vacated office. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Zizhong, Mr.
Zhang Xiaohui and Mr. Zhou Zejiang shall retire from office by
rotation at the the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2022
Annual General Meeting”) and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the independent non-
executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of 3 years. None of the Directors who are
proposed for election or re-election at the 2022 Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation. There is no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors,
the management shareholders of the Company nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business that competed or might compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company,
each of Mr. Qian Kun, Ms. An Juan, Q Kun Ltd. and Juan L
Ltd., all being the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”), has confirmed to the Company that,
since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2021, he/she/it has
complied with the Deed of Non-competition dated 28 June 2021
(the “Undertakings”) as defined and disclosed in the Prospectus.

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, the independent non-executive Directors had
reviewed the status of compliance and the confirmation provided
by the Controlling Shareholders as part of the annual review
process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has received the
confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders regarding the
Undertakings; (ii) there was no competing business reported by
the Controlling Shareholders; and (iii) there was no particular
situation rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings being
questionable, the independent non-executive Directors are of the
view that the Undertakings have been complied with and been
enforced by the Company in accordance with the terms.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
through shareholders’ written resolutions on 23 June 2021 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge the contributions that
the eligible participants had or may have made to the Group. The
Directors believe the Share Option Scheme will enable the Group
to reward the Group’s employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme

(1) Purpose
The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme
prepared in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is established to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions that the Eligible Participants (as defined
in paragraph (2) below) had or may have made to our
Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in
our Company with the view to achieving the following

objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group;
and

(if) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going

business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of our Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

@)

(3)

(4)

Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new
Shares as the Board may determine at an exercise price
determined in accordance with paragraph (6) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(if) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(iif) any advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to our Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the day on which
trading of the Shares commences on the Stock Exchange,
and such 10% limit represents 66,000,000 Shares,
representing 9.77% of the total Shares in issue as at the
date of this report.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

()

(6)

52

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances
of the options duly signed by the grantee, together with
a remittance in favor of our Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by our
Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such
payment shall in no circumstances be refundable.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date
upon which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that
date. The period during an option may be exercised will be
determined by our Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, but must be at least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(if) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date

of grant; and

(ifi) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BARRELTE (@)
AT BB ()

)

(6)

R ATIE B AR A5 ]
RATRABEA B B R 2 AT E &
RAZRBREBBREMBRENED
XHBRIAERR AR B XZMER/E L
BRENREN.008 THRIAE -
BEREAGEARERERDEARA
BRI AR - |wAA - BERET
BRE -

BT AR IR I AR A & M0 RN BB
BREASERI Y EERMNER 2K
K BE#Z BB T FEMATRERTEE o
BERENETENHREKERESE R
BERBET  HEBRERELESB T
FRIETAIITRE

BR17 181

BREASRETHROREERE/E
SERMBEETNER - HELHER
PMEERATESE :

(i) REHBEBRMERRER
FrEIB s (B - X B
BARABRXMAFERETES
XHHBEF

(i) EBEXRFRLEHAMABEEER -
BRHEHRERMY R
FHYHE K

iy  AEREBHOKROEE -



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(7) The duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
the period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date
(after which, no further options shall be offered or granted
under the Share Option Scheme), but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto
or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the rules of the Share Option Scheme. As
at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme is approximately nine years and three
months.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
the section headed “Appendix V — Statutory and General
Information — D. SHARE OPTION SCHEME — 1. Share
Option Scheme” in the Prospectus.

Since the date of the adoption of the Share Option Scheme
and up to the date of this report, no options have been
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme, and there were no outstanding options
under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required to be entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were otherwise required, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out
below:
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INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Nature of Interest
ERE

Name of Director

BExfA

Mr. Qian Kun®
S S e

Interest of spouse

Ry EEEs AEEs

Ms. An Juan®

RA QTR AR

Interest in controlled corporations/

Interest in controlled corporations/

Number of
Shares or Approximate
underlying percentage of
Shares shareholding @
[i& 17 =k 48 B A% 1D BEAFE A%
EE0 Bokm
434,895,000 (L) 64.38%
434,895,000 (L) 64.38%

LIRE O Interest of spouse
SRk EEL B

Notes: B 5E

1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. The letter “S” (1) FEILIEEARRBFOFR - T8 [SHEEA
denotes the person’s short position in the Shares. RIRDEIARE ©

2 Mr. Qian Kun is the sole shareholder of Q Kun Ltd. and is therefore deemed  (2) WA AQ Kun Ltd. B9 ME— YR - Btk #5148 A
to be interested in the 397,275,000 Shares held by Q Kun Ltd. Mr. Qian Kun RQ Kun Ltd. 5 A #397,275,000 & iz 13 o #E 5
is also the spouse of Ms. An Juan and is therefore deemed to be interested it BRRENRRIBL LIRS @ FILWH
in all the 37,620,000 Shares Ms. An Juan is interested in through Juan L BRLZEBLLEBIuan L Ltd. B EZHN 2 56
Ltd.. 37,620,000/ Ik A #E L ©

(3) Ms. An Juan is the sole shareholder of Juan L Ltd. and is therefore deemed  (3) L8t AJuan L Ltd. 9ME— PR R - It #4875
to be interested in the 37,620,000 Shares held by Juan L Ltd.. Ms. An Juan MJuan L Ltd.# & #137,620,0000 A {7 - 1 5 1
is also the spouse of Mr. Qian Kun and is therefore deemed to be interested i RIGRTMAEE S LIRS - HU AR
in all the 397,275,000 Shares. M2 EF397,275,000/ IR H R EH 2w ©

(4) As at 31 December 2021, the number of issued Shares was 675,529,000  (4) M2021F12A381 B ' ERITRMHEAE A
Shares. 675,529,000/ °

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

Name of associated
corporation Nature of interest
MHEOEE 2 BaRtE

Name of Director

ExnA

Q Kun Ltd.
Q Kun Ltd.

Beneficial owner
EnHEA

Mr. Qian Kun
22 tas

R LB R

Number of Shares

Bt &R

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
MRAEBLAI B D LL

1 100.00%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2021,
the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
Shares of the Company:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

FERREEMALTRAQFR
DREBROHERR AR

R2021F12A318 * BARQRFA  LLTA
T(BRARAESHERITHRABIN RAR
ARG KBEROTFHEREESF KPEK
BISEXVEPSE2 M BB 3D HVE AR A A B #H
EMERIAE KR ARRRREZESENM
B ERPIZE336IKA THFEMNE LA EZ
AR KEERIEEEFARBRMDE%L
LA EfERR -

Number of
Shares or
underlying

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding @

B4

Shares"

Betn S A RE

ey e g E O AP0
Q Kun Ltd. Beneficial owner 397,275,000(L) 58.81%
EnlEAA
Juan L Ltd. Beneficial owner 37,620,000(L) 5.57%
EnEAA
Mr. Qian Bing@ Interest in a controlled corporation 37,620,000(L) 5.57%
K Ee R AE RS
Bing L Ltd. Beneficial owner 37,620,000(L) 5.57%
EmEEA
Note: et -
1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. The letter “S” (1) FE[LIIEEAARKRODHOFE - FE [SHEEA

denotes the person’s short position in the Shares.

(2) Mr. Qian Bing is the sole shareholder of Bing L Ltd. and is therefore deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Bing L Ltd.

(3) As at 31 December 2021, the number of issued Shares was 675,529,000
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
Shares of the Company.

RRDREKE -
@) k&L RBIng L Ltd BOME—RR R - EHILHER A
Bing L Ltd. 358 MR H A i as o

3) MN2021F12A31H EFXTRMHEE B

675,529,0008% °

R2021F12A318 * R EXFA#EEEIN » &
AENTEEENGEMAT(BRARRES
EEITEA BN BAA A RIR 17 sk A8 BE A% 15 =
HERBFESRBEGPIEXVIE2REID
R EXERARRFENESSAR - 5k
AR RRIRIEEFH M E 5336152 T
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report and the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to which the
Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue attributable
to the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

The major suppliers of the Group are construction material
suppliers and construction contractors. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the five largest suppliers of the Group, which are
all independent third parties, accounted for less than 30% of the
total purchases of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares,
had an interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report, the Group entered into the following transactions as
described below with persons who are regarded as “connected
persons” pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

TERFRHKER
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BB D 30% °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
conducted the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules), which
are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Property Management Services

On 23 June 2021, our Company entered into a property
management services framework agreement (the “Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”) with Anhui
Sanxun Properties Management Co., Ltd. (X =W*EEE
R A 7R]) (“Sanxun Properties Management”), pursuant to which
our Company may (for ourselves and on behalf of our subsidiaries)
engage Sanxun Properties Management for the provision of
property management services, including (i) property management
services for unsold properties, car parking lots and properties
owned by us; and (i) on-site security, cleaning, greening, as
well as customer services to property sale offices (the “Property
Management Services”), for a term commencing from the Listing
Date (i.e. 19 July 2021) until 31 December 2023.

The maximum service fees under the Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 will not exceed RMB7.5 million and for the years ending
31 December 2022 and 2023 will not exceed RMB8.1 million
and RMB8.5 million, respectively. The actual transaction amount
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB6.3 million.

Sanxun Properties Management is owned as to 95% by Anhui
Sanxun Investment and as to 5% by Ms. An Juan, our executive
Director and the spouse of Mr. Qian. Anhui Sanxun Investment
is owned as to 84% by Mr. Qian Kun, our executive Director,
as to 8% by Ms. An Juan, and as to 8% by Mr. Qian Bing, the
father of Mr. Qian Kun. As such, Sanxun Properties Management
is a connected person of our Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Property
Management Services Framework Agreement will constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) for the Property Management Services Framework
Agreement is expected to be over 0.1% but all the applicable
percentage ratios are less than 5% on an annual basis, such
transactions will constitute continuing connected transactions for
our Company that are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement but subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Landscape Architecture Services

On 23 June 2021, our Company entered into a landscape
architecture services framework agreement (the “Landscape
Architecture Services Framework Agreement”) with Anhui
Qiaoyi Garden Construction Co., Ltd. (X EBE2EMSEHER
fRAR]) (“Anhui Qiaoyi”), pursuant to which our Company may
(for ourselves and on behalf of our subsidiaries) engage Anhui
Qiaoyi for the provision of landscape architecture services for
our property development projects, including landscape design
and planning, construction, gardening and maintenance (the
“Landscape Architecture Services”), for a term commencing
from the Listing Date until 31 December 2028.

The maximum service fees under the Landscape Architecture
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 will not exceed RMB103.9 million and for the years ending
31 December 2022 and 2023 will not exceed RMB119.6 million
and RMB131.3 million, respectively. The actual transaction
amount during the year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB71.3
million.

Anhui Qiaoyi is held as to 60% by Mr. Lu Zhen (%) and as to
40% by Ms. Shi Xiaoli (AEEE), on trust for the benefit of Mr.
Qian Kun. As confirmed by Mr. Qian Kun, such trust arrangement
had been entered into due to his lack of time in managing the
business and affairs of Anhui Qiaoyi. As such, the legal title of
Anhui Qiaoyi was entrusted to Mr. Lu Zhen and Ms. Shi Xiaoli with
a view to delegating to them the daily management authorities
of Anhui Qiaoyi. As such, Anhui Qiaoyi is a connected person of
our Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Landscape Architecture Services
Framework Agreement will constitute a continuing connected
transaction for our Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Landscape Architecture Services (Continued)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) for the Landscape Architecture Services Framework
Agreement is expected to be over 0.1% but all the applicable
percentage ratios are less than 5% on an annual basis, such
transactions will constitute continuing connected transactions for
our Company that are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement but subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions have been entered into in (i) the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the relevant
agreements governing the transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practise
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have
issued their unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected

transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are provided under
note 33 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules that is
required to be disclosed, except for those described in the sub-
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, in
respect of which the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being
the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules, at the time of
Listing and at all time thereafter, the Company must maintain
minimum public float of 25% of the total issued share capital
of the Company taking into account the partial exercise of the
over-allotment option. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the number of shares held by the public in the Company
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report has
been in compliance with the minimum percentage of public float
prescribed by the Stock Exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2021. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section of this report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out in the section
headed “Four-year financial summary” on pages 228 of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, every Director is
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain
through their own fraud or dishonesty, pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance for the year ended 31 December 2021, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors. The permitted indemnity
provision was in force during the year ended 31 December 2021
and remained in force as at the date of this report for the benefit of
the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 24 June 2022
(the “2022 Annual General Meeting”). A notice convening the
2022 Annual General Meeting will be published on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to
the Shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules in due course. For the purposes of determining the
Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak and vote at the 2022
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 21 June 2022 to Friday, 24 June
2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2022 Annual
General Meeting, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20 June
2022.

AUDITOR

The Company’s shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange
on 19 July 2021, and there has been no change in auditor since
the Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited
by Ernst and Young who will retire at the 2022 Annual General
Meeting. Ernst and Young, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst and
Young as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited
Qian Kun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TXRERBRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the holders (the
“Shareholders”) of the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company and
to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own
code on corporate governance and, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Company had complied with all applicable
code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code since the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2021.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Qian Kun (Chairman)
Ms. An Juan

Mr. Wang Zizhong

Mr. Zhang Xiaohui

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sheng
Mr. Zhou Zejiang
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan

BOARD COMPQOSITION

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consists of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Qian Kun (Chairman), Ms. An Juan, Mr.
Wang Zizhong and Mr. Zhang Xiaohui, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sheng, Mr. Zhou
Zejiang and Mr. Chan Ngai Fan. An updated list of the Directors
and their roles and functions is published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company, respectively. The overall
management and supervision of the Company’s operation and the
function of formulating overall business strategies are vested in the
Board.
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BOARD COM POS'T'ON (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all
times since Listing met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The three independent non-executive
Directors represent more than one-third of the Board, complying
with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
whereby independent non-executive directors of a listed issuer
must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard
the interest of Shareholders. During the Reporting Period, the
Board performed the following corporate governance duties:

il reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2 reviewed the compliance with Securities Dealing Code for
Directors;
3. reviewed the training and continuous professional

development of Directors;

4. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system
and internal control system; and

58 reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report.

Mr. Qian Kun, the chairman and an executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. An Juan, an executive Director, president and chief
executive officer of the Company. Save as disclosed, there are no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
among members of the Board.

BEEAK )
REBE2021F12A31BHILFE - EEg€H
EHR—EEF EMARRNES10(1) RQIEFAT
HEUSVEE =B LN TEERZD
HPr—ZBUIERTESTBEAEREZEE
ERUGHHNEEYBERERZRE - =
BBUFRTEEREZTSHUEBE=HZ
— A LTHRAIEIA0AIEE N AR
TARNBYIENTESAE P HESE =5
Z—Z2EE-BETeRE EEgKEMA
RERHZ B EAREARR B REFE o
RBEHD  EESCBITUTOEERE
1

2 BEHNESETRESZRZTAMER

3. ERNESEIIRFEEXRRNBN

4. EHRREERTLAIESRAD

M K&

5. EHARBETOEESRTANEBR
MRARERDEERREPNIFRER
W o

ITRERATESFEERERARANGTE
B RIRTRERZBRINERS - KRE
BEESN BEFTE@XRB2EHBMEM® X
% BB EMEXBERR -

—T - R ZREREEERAR 65



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. All Directors
have carried out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and have acted
in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. Their names and biographical details are
set out in the “Directors and Senior Management’s Profile”
section of this report. Liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company is maintained by the Company with
appropriate coverage for certain legal liabilities which may arise in
the course of performing their duties.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with
other senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board
from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group. Executive Directors and senior
executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources
and make financial and operational decisions. The Board also
gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and will
review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are published in a
timely manner. In respect of Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, it is stated that for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group’s current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings amounted to RMB1,372,124,000 while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB464,894,000. This condition,
along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1, indicates that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast covering a period
of twelve months from the end of 31 December 2021 and are of
the opinion that taking into account of the appropriate plans and
measures, the above situation will not have a material impact on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the
Group will have sufficient funds to support the Group’s operations
and repay the above debts on time. Details of the measures to
improve the Group’s financial positions are set out in Note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report. The directors
consider it appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
on a going concern basis. In addition to this, the Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Group on a
going concern basis.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in
the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views
carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. The functions of
independent non-executive Directors include bringing an impatrtial
view and judgement on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control; and scrutinising the Company’s
performance and monitoring performance reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have made positive contributions to the
development of the Company through providing their professional
advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Confirmation of independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors
has been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules
and each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual written confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on our Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diversified
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development. The Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills
and experience, including commercial property operation,
overall business management, finance and investment. They
obtained degrees in various majors including industrial and civil
architecture, accounting and statistics, construction engineering,
science and political economics. We have three independent non-
executive Directors who have different industry backgrounds,
representing over one-third of our Board members. Furthermore,
the Board has a wide range of age, ranging from 38 years old to
60 years old. We have taken and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company, including
but without limitation at our Board and senior management
levels. As of 31 December 2021, one of the senior management
members of the Company is a female. Taking into account
our business model and specific needs, we consider that the
composition of the Board satisfies our board diversity policy.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the board
diversity policy further provides that the Board shall take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendations on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure
that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
our Board to gender parity. Going forward and with a view to
developing a pipeline of potential successors to the Board that
may meet the targeted gender diversity ratio set out below, we
will (i) continue to make appointments based on merits with
reference to board diversity as a whole; (i) take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of the Group by recruiting staff of
different gender; (i) consider the possibility of nominating female
management staff who has the necessary skills and experience to
the Board; and (iv) provide career development opportunities and
more resources in training female staff with the aim of promoting
them to the senior management or board of the Company so that
we will have a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to our Board in a few years’ time.

The nomination committee will use its best efforts to identify and
recommend female candidates to the Board for consideration for
appointment as Directors with an ultimate aim to achieve at least
20% female representation in the Board within five years of Listing,
subject to there being suitable candidates and the Directors being
satisfied with the qualification and experience of the relevant
candidates after a reasonable review process based on selection
criteria designed with the best interests of the Company’s
business in mind. The Directors will exercise fiduciary duties in
the process, acting in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole when making the relevant appointments.

The nomination committee is responsible for ensuring diversity
within of the Board members and will use its best efforts to identify
and recommend suitable candidates, including female candidates,
for the Board’s consideration. We also welcome candidates of
different gender to apply for our mid to senior level positions. The
ultimate decision of the appointment will be based on merits and
the contribution which the selected candidates could bring to
our Board and management team. The Board believes that such
merit-based selection criteria will best enable the Company to
serve the Shareholders and other stakeholders going forward.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term. Such term
is subject to his retirement by rotation and re-election at an
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association. Pursuant to the Article 83(3)
of the Company’s articles of association, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director, there shall be no maximum number of Directors unless
otherwise determined from time to time by the Shareholders in
general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the Article 84(1) of the Company’s articles of
association, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
that one-third), shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. The members of the Company may, at any
general meetings convened and held in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association, remove a Director by ordinary
resolution at any time before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Company’s articles of
association or in any agreement between the Company and such
Director and may by ordinary resolution elect or appoint another
person in his stead.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Immediately prior to the Listing, all Directors have been given a
comprehensive training session covering a wide range of topics
including but not limited to directors’ duties and responsibilities,
corporate governance and continuing obligations of a listed
company.

For every newly appointed Director after the Listing, the Company
would arrange a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
session on his/her appointment to ensure he/she would have
a proper understanding of the Company’s businesses and
operations as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant
statues, laws, rules and regulations as a director of a listed
company.

As part of continuous professional development of the Directors,
the Company also provides briefings and other trainings to
develop and refresh the Director’s knowledge and skills. and
continuously update Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Group’s business, the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors
attended the aforementioned comprehensive training, a training
session on update on the recent Listing Rules amendments, and
read relevant materials to keep themselves abreast of regulatory
developments and changes.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications. The Board intends to hold
at least four meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals
after Listing. Additional meetings would be arranged, if and when
required. The date of each meeting is decided in advance to
enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Board meetings (Continued)

The meeting of the Board has been held on 30 August 2021 to
consider and approve the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2021. The Company will fully comply with
code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code and
will hold at least four Board meetings annually at approximately
quarterly intervals

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 2 Board meetings
were held and no general meeting was held. 1 meeting of the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), no meeting of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company was held. The attendance records of each member of
the Board is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of

Attendance/
Number of
Board
Meetings
HERE/
B

ey

Name of Director EEYN

Committee
Meeting(s)
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Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Meeting(s)
LERE/
REZEE

AN
SENE

Attendance/
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
Meeting(s)
HERE/
FMZzEg

AN AN
N

Attendance/
Number

of General
Meeting(s)

Audit

HERE,/
RRRERE

Mr. Qian Kun BB 2/2 N/A TNEF N/A NE A 0/0 N/A NEF
Ms. An Juan ZIRT LT 2/2 N/A & 0/0 N/A TNEF N/A NEF
Mr. Wang Zizhong IFERE 2/2 N/A NEA N/A NERA N/A TEA N/A NE A
Mr. Zhang Xiaohui BBELE 212 N/ATER N/A & N/A i A N/A i
Mr. Chan Ngai Fan BRELE 2/2 1/1 0/0 0/0 N/A NE A
Mr. Chen Sheng BREE 2/2 11 N/A T iE 00  NATER
Mr. Zhou Zejiang B2 E 2/2 1/1 00  NATER N/A i A
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions conducted by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
Code of Conduct for securities transactions conducted by relevant
Directors and employees. After making specific enquires to all the
Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code from the
Listing Date to the 31 December 2021.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of
the Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/
she possesses insider information in relation to those securities.
No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
officers and employees was noted by the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, provided that the Group records a profit after tax
and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not
affect the normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board would take into account (i) the Group’s financial results;
(i) shareholders’ interests; (iii) general business conditions and
strategies; (iv) capital requirements; (v) taxation considerations;
(vi) contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any; and any
other conditions that the Board may consider relevant. Whilst the
Board will review from time to time for determination on proposed
dividend with the above factors taken into account, there can
be no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.

Dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during
a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to Shareholders’ approval.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the end of 31
December 2021, the positions of the chairman and the chief
executive officer were held separately. The role of chairman was
held by Mr. Qian Kun, and the role of chief executive officer was
held by Ms. An Juan. For the relationship of Mr. Qian Kun and
Ms. An Juan, please refer to the section headed “Directors” in the
biographies of Directors and senior management above for further
information. The segregation of duties of the chairman and the
chief executive officer ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage and provide leadership for the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. All the Board committees are empowered by the Board
under their own terms of reference which have been posted on
Stock Exchange’s website and/or the Company’s website.

Audit committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set
forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 23 June 2021. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist our Board in
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of our Group’s
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ngai Fan (being the chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Chen Sheng and Mr. Zhou Zejiang. In
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of
the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 1 meetings of the Audit
Committee was held to review the Group’s interim financial results
for submission to the Board for approval, review the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group, review and
monitor the effectiveness of internal audit function and oversee the
audit process.

The Audit Committee held the meeting on 31 March 2022 at
which, among other things, it reviewed the audited consolidated
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and made recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 24 June 2022 as
the independent auditor of the Company. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the appointment, selection, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibility for the consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are prepared in a manner which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis
and are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards
and principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions
required of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 has been prepared on this basis. In
addition to the matter described in the Directors’ Responsibilities
for Financial Statements”, the Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statements by external auditor, Ernst & Young, about their
reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group are set out in the section headed “INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT” in this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code on 23 June
2021. The Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to
the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Group
to its Directors and senior management. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to establish and review the policy
and structure of the remuneration of our Directors and senior
management and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members
including one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors. The three members are Mr. Zhou Zejiang
(being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Ms. An Juan
and Mr. Chan Ngai Fan.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange from the
Listing Date, no meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Nomination committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code on 23 June 2021.
The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment of members of
our Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members including
one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors. The three members are Mr. Qian Kun (being the
chairman of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Sheng and Mr.
Chan Ngai Fan.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange from the

Listing Date, no meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria and procedures to nominate board candidates.
The Nomination Committee aims to nominate suitable candidates
to the Board and advise the Board on the appointment of directors
and make recommendation to the Board, after assessing a
number of factors of a candidate as set out in the nomination
policy.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination
Committee shall identify suitable board candidates and make
recommendation to the Board, after assessing a number of factors
of a candidate, including, but not limited to:

° reputation for integrity

° accomplishment and experience

° compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

° diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to

gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy,
as appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for
consideration and approval from time to time.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company
and the Group. In preparation of the financial statements,
International Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted
and the appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
used and applied. The Board aims to present a clear and
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual
and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant
to the then applicable code provision C.1.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, management would provide such explanation
and information to the Board as will enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The work scope and reporting responsibilities of Ernst and Young,
the Company’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 84 to 92 of this report.

Risk management and internal control system

The Board confirms that it is responsible for maintaining adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group as a going concern and reviews annually the effectiveness
of the Company'’s internal controls and risk management systems
to ensure the adequacy of the internal controls and the risk
management systems in place. These systems are designed to
manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that there will be no material misstatement or loss.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM (Continued)

Risk management and internal control system (Continued)

The Board has established a comprehensive risk management
and internal control system, which consist of an organization
framework, as well as policies, procedures and risk management
methods that the Board considers to be appropriate for our
business operations. The system is designed to allow us to
identify, report and address those risk and incidents that may
significantly affect our performance or otherwise expose us to
significant losses, liability or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The risk management system comprises the
formulation and implantation of a set of policies and procedures
relating to relevant risk areas, including compliance with laws and
regulations, construction quality, work safety and environmental
matters. We are constantly monitoring the effectiveness of our
risk management system. The Board oversees the implementation
of the risk management and internal control measures and is
responsible with reviewing the effectiveness of such system. The
Board is responsible for approving our business and investment
plans, adjusting the risk management plans and strategies in
response to risks identified in our business operations. The internal
control system covers various aspects of the operations, including
information system control, procurement and accounts payable
control, cash management, compensation management and
financial reporting control. The internal audit functions have also
been carried out under the leadership of the Board and the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
implemented procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. In particular, the Group:

- has conducted its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012;
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM (Continued)

Risk management and internal control system (Continued)

- has established its own disclosure obligation procedures,
which set out the procedures and controls for the
assessment of potential inside information and the handling
and dissemination of inside information. The procedures
have been communicated to the senior management
and staff of the Company, and their implementation was
monitored by the Company; and

- has made broad, non-exclusive disclosure of information
to the public through channels such as financial reports,
public announcements and its website.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis by the audit committee and
the executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed
at least once each year by the Board. During the year ended
31 December 2021, these systems were reviewed, covering all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls of the Group, and considered effective and adequate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services is set out as follows:
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Amount
(RMB’000)
Ex-C]
(ARMF )

3,600

Total

3,600
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REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS
OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the then applicable code provision B.1.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration of
members of the senior management (other than Directors) by band
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000

N EREEE RSN

BEERERNCEESASTRIEB.1.51&5T 8
1EX - B E2021F12A31BILFEE  a&kE
BEKE (BEERIN ZFFHIZARETMT

Number of
members of
senior

management
SREERE
KRB AE

7 #1,500,001 7T /8 #2,000,0007T
72,000,001 T 28 #2,500,0007T
75 #3,000,001 7T &5 %3,500,0007C -

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has appointed Mr. Zhang Ya and Ms. Cheung
Yuet Fan as joint company secretaries in place of Mr. Chang Eric
Jackson on 14 December 2021, for details please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2021. Ms.
Cheung Yuet Fan is a director of an external service provider,
Tricor Services Limited, assisting Mr. Zhang Ya in discharging
his duties as the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhang
Ya is the principal contact person of Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan in the
Company. Each of Mr. Zhang Ya and Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan has
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2021, they have
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography
of Mr. Zhang Ya and Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan are set out in the
“Directors and senior management’s profile” section on pages 42
to 43 of this report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s articles of association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the secretary of the Company for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of association
for the Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request
the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the above paragraph
headed “Convening an extraordinary general meeting”.

Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 46/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

E-mail address: zhangya@sanxungroup.com
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the
forthcoming annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDUM AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’s articles of association has been amended and
restated with effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the
respective website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date, the Company did
not made any significant changes to its constitutional documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

M % BED R

Ernst & Young SR ETE Y Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place =3 i hoch Fax{#E: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road B2i89795% ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong Kt —Re274&

EY::

To the shareholders of Sanxun Holdings Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sanxun
Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which states that as at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings amounted to RMB1,372,124,000 while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to RMB464,894,000 only. This
condition, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1,
indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. In addition
to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going
concern section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEELER

Provision for land appreciation tax

TR AR

The Group is a real estate developer in the People’s
Republic of China focusing on the development and
sales of residential properties.
EEEREINAERHEHETTMENTEARLNM
BlE AR -

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland China is
one of the main components of the Group’s taxation
charge. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based
on the appreciation of land value. At the end of each
reporting period, the management of the Group
estimates the provision for LAT based on their
understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax
rules and regulations, and the estimated total sales
of properties less total deductible expenditure, which
includes lease charges for land use rights, property
development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. When the LAT is subsequently
determined, the actual payments may be different
from the estimates. Provision for LAT in Mainland
China is significant to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the determination of the
provision for LAT involves significant management’s
judgement and interpretation of the relevant tax laws
and regulations and practices. Accordingly, provision
for LAT is identified as a key audit matter.
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HOF2ERBH 2 — - WEHEN LHIREHIRR
30% £ 60% M) RHER R + HIREEHN - REWE
HR EEEEREESRELHBEERGERRNER
IR R REH T IR ER BB RAT Y REE AR
WAITIR A BB (R E T ERERERY WER
BRA  BERARRE ) ELhE o R T
EHIIBERE  BERMNRESHETRERGTERRT
[ - RE R+ IREN B EYEEERS T HRE
MEBEXN BEETABREBINEEENEARHE
MEBETEEERERUAREMNNZE - Bt - +
IR ER B ERIETE RBREZEE -

The accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the provision for land appreciation tax
are included in notes 3 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
+ b (B A R 0 R B R A E A R BB R A
B IS HRE&RMIEE3 10 -
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FAREEZEEw)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERERPNNEERREREE

We involved our internal tax specialists to assist us to
perform a review on the LAT position, including the
review of the estimates and assumptions used by the
Group and the evaluation of tax exposure based on
communications with the relevant tax authorities and
applying our knowledge and experience.
EECRENIBRBEER B EEFE T IEETANLE
TEE  PRESESECANMGRER - URIRE
HARBHFIELBEAER REAESNMHRER
FHE RIS R

We recalculated the tax computation and compared
our calculations with the amounts recorded by the
Group.

EEENAENBAELER  UHES
SESENESEETER

Db g B

Eaati=] SN H=

We assessed the disclosures related to the provision
for land appreciation tax in the consolidated financial
statements.

EETN G B HRRTELIHMIZERBREEENE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEEXER

FAREEZEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEERERPNNEERRERSEE

Net realisable value of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

F#EPYFERIFIEL ERRE T Y F )] E 5% (E
The Group had a number of property development
projects located in Mainland China which were
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
(“NRV”) and as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
properties under development (“PUD”) and completed
properties held for sale (“PHS”) amounted to
RMB12,196,206,000, which represented 71% of the
Group’s total assets.
ESEETFRAMAEETMEREER @ HIRKAR
AERFE(T2RFE])NSEEZ7 - 1K2021
F12A31H EEERAERE([BARPYWE])
RFELENRIVNE([BELHENX ) RARK
12,196,206,0007C ' G EEEBEENT1% °

The determination of the NRV of these properties
involves significant management judgement and
estimation, including the expected selling prices, the
anticipated cost of completion of PUD and the costs
to be incurred in selling the properties based on
prevailing market conditions.
EBEZSMENTERFEYRENEEE FE &G
it BREEHEE  TREZERYEROFERKAR LR
BEITHALEZSEMEELNBR -

We obtained an understanding of, evaluated and
tested the relevant internal controls over the Group’s
process in determining the NRV.

BETH AR S ESEREE A 2R FERREN
R RE AR o

We reviewed the Group’s net realisable value
estimation and checked the expected selling prices to,
where available, recently transacted prices for similar
properties or the prices of comparable properties
located in the vicinity of each development projects by
utilising the industry knowledge and experience of our
internal property valuation specialists.

ERBRAETENMYETEERNITERIELL
% EERESREER FEMLT RZHAMEER
(A ) EHREUYMENR S ESMMMEIFEER AT
MEER -

For the cost of completion of PUD and the costs to
be incurred in selling the properties, we evaluated
management’s estimation methodology, which had
been updated to reflect the latest historical information
and the refined construction and selling cost budget.
%%&%%¢%%m&$&ﬁ%%¥%ﬁimﬁ$ﬁ
= BEMAEERENMR L R AEEIRER
ﬁ%fﬁﬁﬂ&% BZENHENARTEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEELER

FAREEZEEw)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERERPNNEERREREE

Net realisable value of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (Continued)

FZF Y FE R IFEL & rg T Y3 m il Z 8 )FE (E)
The calculation of the net realisable value of two
property development projects at the financial
reporting date is performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer.

R B SRS B EHAMEYEMEIER A Z R )FENE
BEH B AREEGEMETT -

We identified the assessment of the NRV of the
properties as a key audit matter because of the
significance of these properties to the Group’s total
assets and the inherent risks involved in estimating
the anticipated cost of completion of PUD and the
expected selling prices for each property development
project particularly in light of the current economic
Circumstances in Mainland China.

E IE%XW EIWEE\EEEE'&ﬁ
HEFRHEAMEFAEEBR [l FEET

%%Wﬁ%ﬁ$&%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ&ﬂ
BER °

The accounting policies and disclosures of the net
realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale are included in
notes 2.4, 3, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FRERMERBELENRIVENTEZRFENS
ETECR R BH R R A IS ERMI 2.4 - 3 1819 -
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We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional
valuer and obtained an understanding of the valuation
processes and significant assumptions from the
management of the Group and the valuer.
m#nﬁﬁi BEEMAER - B8N REBM - Wit

SEEREMGEMESHREBERERNRRENT
%at °

We involved our internal valuation specialist to assist us
in evaluating the estimations used by the management
of the Group and the valuer, in particular, the valuation
models, assumptions, parameters and significant
inputs used by the management of the Group and the
valuer.

EECERANTHEER B ESTHEEEERER
HERPEARMEE - CEEESEEERERMEEMMT
EAMNGERER  RER  2EREEHAHE -

We evaluated the disclosures of the net realisable
value of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale.
EETERABETRMERFELENR I YEN T ZERF
BEHVIKEE -



OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

FRFHRIVEMER
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HERERNEFRRNER  TEREAVHR
KEBEENZHBERE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

| =]
e

s R EMEE K& R

B2

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 | 8% 20214128318 [LFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
REVENUE g 5 5,616,646 3,946,091
Cost of sales HEMA (4,693,298) (2,881,130)
GROSS PROFIT EF 923,348 1,064,961
Other income and gains H At U A K ez 5 14,325 12,449
Selling and distribution expenses 4% ko iHFA X (221,220) (200,203)
Administrative expenses THAX (196,307) (188,662)
Other expenses Hih Rk (16,789) (16,549)
Fair value loss on investment BEMENTFEEE
properties (13,324) -
Finance costs BE KA 7 (39,971) (22,087)
Share of profits and losses of: JE A5 B & B4
Associates FA /NG (4,645) (6,620)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B F% A % A 6 445,417 643,289
Income tax expense FriS®i i 10 (186,512) (275,593)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 258,905 367,696
Attributable to: LA AT e -
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZ YN 2,991 367,253
Non-controlling interests JEPRARRE RS 255,914 443
258,905 367,696
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 | #Z2021412A31H It FE

2021 2020
SES —goTF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TR ARETTT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME E i 2 U

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREEWEHAEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 258,905 367,696
Attributable to: AR AT -
Owners of the parent [SYNEIE/ FWN 2,991 367,253
Non-controlling interests JEFERR = 255,914 443
258,905 367,696
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEAEMWN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS #&RZER
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HAR N EE RMBO0.005 RMBO0.742
12 AR #0.0057T AR¥0.7427T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R

31 DECEMBER 2021 | 2021412 A31H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 13 15,999 28,499
Investment properties KEYE 14 149,152 -
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15(a) 22,531 51,549
Investments in associates REE A TIHIRE 16 20,917 25,562
Deferred tax assets FEIERIEE B 17 313,223 380,531
Total non-current assets R EELRRE 521,822 486,141
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development KR 18 10,645,871 11,656,637
Completed properties held for sale #H{EHED % T % 19 1,550,335 540,891
Trade receivables FEWE 538 20 125 -
Due from related parties FE R BEE 5 08 33 22,532 40,392
Prepayments, other receivables TERTRIR - HAbFEL
and other assets RIE N E A E E 21 2,428,025 1,723,663
Tax recoverable A Y B FE I8 247,134 209,805
Contract cost assets BN EEE 22 101,238 64,114
Restricted cash ZRER S 23 956,365 1,477,174
Pledged deposits [REEEENER N 23 272,824 307,232
Cash and cash equivalents BENIRGEEY 23 464,894 457,430
Total current assets MENEELRTE 16,689,343 16,477,338
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables ENESHIER
AN 24 1,744,768 1,429,801
Other payables and accruals HAb BT FRIE R
FEETE R 25 1,217,103 1,902,844
Contract liabilities SHBE 26 9,545,432 9,458,949
Due to related parties FET RGNS I 33 30,425 3,709
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITR
other borrowings H A &R 27 1,372,124 1,065,298
Lease liabilities HEARE 15(b) 7,370 12,823
Tax payable eI IR 10 439,143 468,530
Total current liabilities mENBELRE 14,356,365 14,341,954
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEERE 2,332,978 2,135,384
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHATERABEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,854,800 2,621,525
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31 DECEMBER 2021 | 20214128318

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank FHEIRIT R EMER
and other borrowings 27 226,750 1,031,154
Lease liabilities HEGE 15(b) 15,229 39,025
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE 17 7,540 8,791
Total non-current liabilities ERB A B 249,519 1,078,970
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,605,281 1,542,555
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners BATEEA
of the parent AL RE S
Share capital i 28 6 -
Reserves i 29 1,641,209 947,759
1,641,215 947,759
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 964,066 594,796
TOTAL EQUITY XA 2,605,281 1,542,555
Qian Kun An Juan
E3:4 Z18
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
TEFEHITESE TTRABHAFHNTESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREE K

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 | 8% 20214128318 [LFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BRTRAARSE

Statutory Non-
Share ~ Share  Merger ~ Other  surplus Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total Interests  equity

EERHR
k& RGEE SHRE Htef R REER B FEREE BREER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETR ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Note 28 Note 29(a) Note 29(c) Note 29(b)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2019512431

1 January 2020 202051418 - - 17,126 - 75844 496,936 580,506 300,201 880,707
Profit and total comprehensive income R 2 B # 4 5

for the year - - - - - 367,253 367,253 443 367,696
Disposal of partial interests in LENBLARSAEED

subsidliaries without losing control K& A2 3/ - - - - - - - 23652 23652
Capital contribution from FERRELE

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - 263200 263,200
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-ERBLE - - - - - - - 7300 7,300
Appropriations to statutory surplus ~ ARZEF R

reserve - - - - 47,685  (47,685) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 2020512318 - = 1726 -+ 128,529 816,504 947,759 594,796 1,542,565

As at 31 December 2020 and 12020612 A31A &

1 January 2021 202151718 - - 1,72 - 123,529 816,504 947,759 594,796 1,542,555
Capital contribution from REARFERERLE

non-controling shareholders

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 151,510 151,510

Considerations paid for acquisition of AEESHERASHER
non-controling sharenolder BEARBEERRE
by the Group from the then equity S IEILE

holders of the subsidiaries - - - 13,400 - - 13400 (38,154) (24,754)
Profit and total comprehensive income £ A I & 2 Az 85
for the year - - - - - 2991 2991 255914 258,905
Issues of shares BRA 6 677,059 = = = - 677,065 - 677,065
Appropriations to statutory surplus ~ BEZ X T REEE
reserve - - - - 29,285 (29,285) - - -
As at 31 December 2021 20214128318 6 677,069 7,726* 13,400* 152,814* 790,210* 1,641,215 964,066 2,605,281
i These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEHBERORNGEATBRARANGE
RMB1,641,209,000 (2020: RMB947,759,000) in the consolidated statement B AR #1,641,209,000 7T (2020 F : AR ¥
of financial position. 947,759,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERERX

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 | #Z2021412A31H It FE

CASH FLOWS FROM REFBERERE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B F A& ) 445,417 643,289
Adjustments for: LTV EEEL AR

Depreciation of items of property, ~ #1% - B/5 k& &R

plant and equipment =] 6,13 13,337 16,731
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FHAEEETE 6,15(a) 10,460 3,819
Finance costs ELE= I %N 7 39,971 22,087
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BE R

property, plant and equipment FiEEE 2 W (76) (112)
Share of profits and losses of DA R B R A &

associates iz 16 4,645 6,620
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHRBARZ

e 5 - 2)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MBENRZ

iy 2% 5 - (2,366)
Impairment loss recognised for EERFELEZE

completed properties held W TYERERERF

for sale and properties under M2 RIEEE

development 18,19 62,022 -
Changes in fair value of KEMENTFEELD)

investment properties 14 13,324 -
Interest income T8 U A 5 (10,557) (7,626)

578,543 682,440
Decrease/(increase) in properties BRERPYENRBELS
under development and BRTIHMERD
completed properties held for sale  (3&70) 370,172 (1,740,111)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash =[RI8 €54~
(3%4n) 520,809 (347,679)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEEFRORL
deposits (3hn) 34,408 (127,563)
Increase in trade receivables JFE U 5 SRIEIE N (125) -
Decrease in prepayments, other  FE[T3XIE « Hih IR
receivables and other assets 18 M H & ER D 79,706 30,823
Increase in contract cost assets & 4k AN E EE I AN (87,124) (28,999)
Increase in trade and bills payables [ E 578 K ENE
AN 314,967 222,535
Decrease in other payables and FEATROE R FERTE R
accruals A+ (55,360) (65,754)
(Decrease)/increase in contract EHBECRLD),Em
liabilities (339,435) 1,678,590
Increase in due to related parties  JE{tRaHE 75 ZIEIE AN 26,716 3,709
Cash generated from operations K& FBHES 1,493,277 207,991
Interest received S & PS) 10,557 7,626
Interest paid EAFE (230,849) (239,727)
Tax paid [y CE] (187,170) (334,338)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BESEE TS, (FTA)
operating activities BeREFHE 1,085,815 (358,448)
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 | 8% 20214128318 [LFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,

REFBERERE

plant and equipment REEE 13 (1,326) (8,439)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEf B AR = (47)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — R B AR — (2,582)
Disposal of an associate s — g AT = 24,000
Proceeds from disposal of items ~ HEWE - ME &

of property, plant and equipment  Z{&ER Fﬁ?%’c%x 565 1,509
Decrease in financial assets at R AFE A B

fair value through profit or loss ERMEERD = 22,631
Interest income MEWA = 354
Advances to associates B EYNEIEE 33 (64,678) (88,321)
Repayment of advances to associates & 2 728 X 33 82,538 99,358
Net cash flows from investing BRETEFIBEERE

activities HE 17,099 48,463
CASH FLOWS FROM METHMERERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PTIS ROE 677,065 -
Acquisition of non-controlling U B — R B A T,Z

interests in a subsidiary e i (6,000) -
Disposal of partial interests in HE—FHREARE S

a subsidiary without losing control 55 1 R S 2 928 il 4 - 23,652
Capital contribution from the JEFERR IR &

non-controlling shareholders 151,510 263,200
Repayments to non-controlling (ES AN IEPNGIE 228 430

shareholders of subsidiaries RFAE (1,410,633) (102,785)
Advances to other related parties )£ b B Bt 5 Eh 30 = (10,000)
Repayment of advances to Ho b BERS 75 (BB E

other related parties - 10,000
Repayment of a loan from 1R 152 B AR BR 420 11l AY)

a company controlled RNElER

by the controlling shareholder = (39,256)
Principal portion of lease payments A& XA LD 15(b), 30(b) (9,814) (2,303)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank 5t 88817 K E b & 3k

and other borrowings PS8 30(b) 1,824,341 1,370,476
Repayment of interest-bearing bank Ei&xt8 RITRE M

and other borrowings RN 30(b) (2,321,919) (1,031,084)
Net cash flows (used in)/from MEFBH(FA) G

financing activities RERETFH (1,095,450) 481,900
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Notes
i3

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BERRSEEYEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS HE 7,464 171,915
Cash and cash equivalents FUREMREFEY
at beginning of year 457,430 285,515

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &REERBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 464,894 457,430

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BERBEEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #5845 #7

Cash and bank balances B MIRTTE 23 1,694,083 2,241,836
Less: Restricted cash B ZREIRE 23 956,365 1,477,174
Pledged deposits [ EEER 23 272,824 307,232
Cash and cash equivalents BEeERERMIRER
as stated in the statement of REZEEY
cash flows 464,894 457,430
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CORPORATE INFORMATION F

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

REER
AAalR/—HRFASEST MK
BRAR o AR AP ERM
3k /& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681,Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111,Cayman Islands °

ARAR—RREEZBAF - RF
N ARERKETNHBEARKRKSE
YMEFRE -  ARANEREZERARARQ
Kun Ltd. - REBEMIERBR B2 %L
EERRR]) -

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were
involved in property development. The immediate holding
company of the Company is Q Kun Ltd. The controlling
shareholder of the Group is Mr. Qian Kun (the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

The particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out RARIMEBARFFBHI AT
below:

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Percentage of

and place of Nominal equity interest
operations value of attributable to
MR registered the Company Principal
Subsidiaries RABER AR share capital AAREMGRE activities
HEAR R MR A EE BO TEER
Directly held:
EERE:
Sanxun Ltd.™* British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100% Investment
7 December 2018 holding
Sanxun Ltd.** RBRARS 50,000% 7T 100% REER
201812 A7H
Tongxun Ltd.™ British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100% Investment
7 May 2019 holding
Tongxun Ltd.* EBRIHE 50,000 T 100% REERR
2019F5A78H
Indirectly held:
BiERs
—EEBERAF Hong Kong of China/ HKD1 100% Investment
Sanxun (HK) Ltd.** 18 December 2018 holding
—REBRRAR" HEEE/ BT 100% REZK
2018124 18H
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1.

102

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Subsidiaries
HELH

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

FREBRRRA
Zhong Ying (HK) Ltd.**
PRESERAA"

ZER(RRCFERBRAR
Sanxun (Anhui) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.”

|11
o

\

2 () CEERBRAF

BNERREERERAA

Chuzhou Jiarui Investment
Development Co., Ltd.***
(“Chuzhou Jlarui’)

BNERREERAR DA™
(HWNER])

BMN=REXBRAF
Chuzhou Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

BH=REZERAF"

B =EBEERAR
Mingguang Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

RR=REXFBRAA"

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
KL
RIBERAHR
R

Hong Kong of China/
21 May 2019
HEEE/
2019%5A421H

People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”)/
Mainland China
28 March 2019
HEARLAE
([+&El),/

Bl A,
201943 A28H

PRC/Mainland China
23 August 2012

RE /B
2012487230

PRC/Mainland China
31 March 2010

RE/HERL
201043318

PRC/Mainland China
2 November 2015

RE/ BRI
2015%11 2R

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

HKDA1

18T

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR#50,000,0007T

RMB1,100,000,000
AR
1,100,000,0007C

RMB20,000,000

AR#20,000,0007T

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )3
BAt

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding

REZR

Property
development

NERZ

Property
development

EGES

Property
development

NERZ

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited = Annual Report 2021



CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) F

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE : ()

Ar=RERREXBRAR

Mingguang Sanxun Yihaoyuan
Real Estate Co., Ltd.”

A =REREEZERAA

AR =RANEXBRAA

Mingguang Sanxun Minzhong
Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

BrX=EHRELFRRA

EM=ERHEXBRAA
Bozhou Sanxun Chengnan
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
EN=EHEEEERAA

BE=REXERAF

Fengyang Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*™

BE=REZBRRA"

BN =EHEREZLER AR

Chuzhou Sanxun Suchu Real
Estate Co., Ltd.*

BM=RFBREXBRRE

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
ML
RIBERAHR
R 2

PRC/Mainland China
15 May 2017

RE/REAL
2017958158

PRC/Mainland China
3 July 2017

RE/REAL
20177 H3H

PRC/Mainland China
15 December 2016

RE/REAL
201612 A15H

PRC/Mainland China
9 May 2017

RE/REAL
201754898

PRC/Mainland China
14 November 2016

RE/REAL
2016411 A14H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

YNGIE-¢21¢ )

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXR

100% Property
development
100% MERE
100% Property
development
100% MERE
100% Property
development
100% MERE
100% Property
development
100% MERE
100% Property
development
100% MERE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 17

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

BN=RHHEXBRAA
Chuzhou Sanxun Chengnan
Real Estate Co., Ltd.”
BHN=RAEEEER AR

N¥GE=REZBERAA
Lixin Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
FMFEG=REXZBERLA"

M¥FE=RTREXERRA

Lixin Sanxun Zhongtong Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™ (“Lixin Zhongtong’)

MEGF=ETBEFARLA
([FIFhE])

FFG=RRREZERAR
Lixin Sanxun Jiantou Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*** (“Lixin Jiantou”)
MFR=RRRBEEARAR™

([RFER])

M¥E=EAREXBRAA
Lixin Sanxun Bangtai Real Estate
Co., Ltd.** (“Lixin Bangtai”)
MEG=RARELBRAA™

([FIFH%])

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
29 November 2016

RE/RER
2016411 A29H

PRC/Mainland China
26 May 2016
RE/HER
2016%F5H26H

PRC/Mainland China
31 July 2018

RE /R R
201847 H31H

PRC/Mainland China
18 May 2017

RE /R R
2017955186

PRC/Mainland China
9 March 2018

RE /R R
2018%3A9H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000

AR #30,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000

AR #30,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR #50,000,0007T

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG ) S
BAt

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

100%

100%

51%

51%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Property
development

UESEE

Property

development

EGES

Property
development

NER%

Property
development

ETES

Property
development

NER%
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. QXFAER@

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
ML
RIBERAHR
R 2

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXR

BiEss : (8)
ZN=BEXERA PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 100% Property
Bozhou Sanxun Real Estate 13 July 2016 development
Co., Ltd.™
EMN=EREXERAA" R/ RER ARE100,000,000T 100% VE ik
2016%7H13H
EM=RLBEXBRAF PRC/Mainland China  RMB20,000,000 100% Property
Bozhou Sanxun Gongguan 11 September 2017 development
Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
EN=RABEBEEBBOA B/ RERH AR20,000,0007 100% EE
201794118
EM=RLXBEXBRAA PRC/Mainland China  RMB50,000,000 48% Property
Bozhou Sanxun Jinfurong 15 August 2017 development
Real Estate Co., Ltd.™*
(“Sanxun Jinfurong”) (Note(a))
EM=REXBREEERAA™ RE/ BN ARES50,000,0007T 48% ELE
([ZREXRE]) (M) 2017587150
ZMER=REXBRA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 70% Property
Bozhou Jiantou Sanxun Real Estate 3 January 2018 development
Co., Ltd.***
ENRR=REEERAF™ HE/ BN ARES50,000,0007T 70% mERE
201851 H3H
EL=RERXBRAF PRC/Mainland China  RMB32,500,000 60% Property
Huaibei Sanxun Real Estate 4 April 2018 development
Co., Ltd.***
BIH=REZBBAA™ HE/ BN ARES2,500,0007T 60% ELE
20184 A4H

T FEHR ZREREEFRAR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 17

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

EG-REXBRAF

Ningyang Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*™

BB REZARAA"

BRNBEEZBERAA

Xuzhou Xunsheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™**

RMNRBEZBRAR™

AE=REXERLA

Hefei Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd."**
(“Hefei Sanxun”)

AR=EEXERAF™
([ER=2])

SERBEXERAA

Shouxian Jinggiao Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*** (“Shouxian Jinggiao”)
(Note(a))

SERBEXRARAR™
([BBRE](WiE)

EELBEHERRAR

Fuyang Shangjun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.”* (“Fuyang Shangjun”)
(Note(a))

BE FREEERA R
([RB L) (Hiita)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
11 June 2018

RE/RERL
201864118

PRC/Mainland China
3 July 2018

RE/REAL
201847 H3H

PRC/Mainland China
19 December 2018

RE/REAL
201812 A19H

PRC/Mainland China
27 December 2018

RE R E R
2018128278
PRC/Mainland China

8 November 2018

PE/FER
2018%11 fi8H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB83,340,000

AE#83,340,0007T

RMB47,076,923

AR#47,076,9237T

RMB50,000,000

AR#50,000,0007T

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to

the Company

FRREERE

B

100%

100%

51%

51%

60%

60%

35%

35%

34%

34%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development

UESEES

Property
development

UESEES

Property
development

UESES
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) F

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE : ()

ER=REXERNA

Huainan Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

ER=REZERDA"

HRAREXBRAR

Nanjing Jiuxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™*

HRAREFBRAF™

HR=REXBRAR

Nanjing Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*™

HR=EEZBRRA"

AR=REXBRATF

Taihu Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd***

(“Taihu Sanxun”) (Note(a))
RP=BEXERAF™
(TKHM=81)(Hita)

ARREEXERAT

Hefei Tongxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

AERZEXARAR"

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
ML
RIBERAHR
R 2

PRC/Mainland China
3 January 2019

RE/REAL
2019F1A3H

PRC/Mainland China
5 January 2019

RE/REAL
2019F1 A58

PRC/Mainland China
5 January 2019

RE/REA
2019F1 A58

PRC/Mainland China
7 March 2019

RE/RERL
2019F3A7H

PRC/Mainland China
15 March 2019
HRE/HER
20194 3A15H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 # R M A
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Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

AR %100,000,0007T

YNGIE-¢21¢ )

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to

the Company

FRREERE

B

100%

100%

51%

51%

100%

100%

30%

30%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEXR

Property
development

UESEE

Property

development

UESEE

Property

development

UESEE

Property

development

UEE

Property

development

NER%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 17

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

ARAREEBRAF
Hefei Jiuxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
BRAREXERAF

BN=REREXERAA

Suzhou Sanxun Guojian Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*

EN=REREXERAA

EM=REXERAF

Suzhou Sanxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*** (“Suzhou Sanxun”)
(Note(a))

BHN=REXBRAA™
([EM=81)(Hita)

AIREREEBRAF
Hefei Zexun Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
AIREREXBERAF

AEMEEXERAF
Hefei Jiaze Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
BEMEEXERAA

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
15 March 2019
RE/HER
20194 3A15H

PRC/Mainland China
20 March 2019

FE/PEA
201943208

PRC/Mainland China
21 March 2019

RE/REAL
2019E3A21H

PRC/Mainland China
27 March 2019
RE/HER
20194 3H27H

PRC/Mainland China
27 March 2019
HE L/ HE R
20194 3H27H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR #50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR#50,000,0007T

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG ) S
BAt

100%

100%

100%

100%

30%

30%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Property
development

EGES

Property
development

ESGES

Property
development

UESES

Property
development

EGES

Property
development

ESGES
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Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)
MRS« ()

M¥F=ZhBEAEXARLA

Lixin Sanxun Zhongtong Nancheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd.***

MFrGE=RhBEUEXERAA™

AEBEELXERLA
Hefei Jinxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
ARRREEERAR

HRIMEEXERAA
Nanjing Jiaze Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
HRMEEXBRAF

HERBREZXBRAA

Shanghai Tongxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*

FERREXERAA

ZMAREXBRAA

Bozhou Jiuxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

EMAREXERAA

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) F

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
KL
RIBERAHR
R 2

PRC/Mainland China
20 February 2019

RE/RE A
20192 A20H

PRC/Mainland China
26 March 2019
HE/ RER
20194 3H26H

PRC/Mainland China
17 May 2019
HE/HE R
2019%5H17H

PRC/Mainland China
15 April 2019

P/ FER
2019547158

PRC/Mainland China
16 April 2019

P/ FER
2019%4 /1168

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

RMB70,000,000

AE#70,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB95,000,000

AR#95,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR#10,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

AER#100,000,0007T

YNGIE-¢21¢ )

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )3
BOK

Principal
activities

TEXHR

55% Property

development

55% MERE

100% Property
development

100% MERE
100% Property
development

100% ESE
100% Property
development

100 % MERE
100% Property
development

100% MERE

T FEHR ZREREEFRAR
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 17

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

ZNZREZXBRATF

Bozhou Qianxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™

2NEREFBRLA

BMEREEZXERAH

Chuzhou Xunze Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

BMEEEXERRA

BMBEEZERAA

Chuzhou Jinxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

HMBREZBRDA

HREREXBRAR

Nanjing Tengxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™

EREEEXBRAA

HRLREHEREERAA
Nanjing Hongxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™* (“Nanjing Hongxun’)
(Note(a))
HRLEENEREERAR™
(TRmBAR ) (Mt (a)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
16 April 2019

RE/RERL
2019F4 A16H

PRC/Mainland China
9 April 2019

RE/RERL
2019F4A9AR

PRC/Mainland China
9 April 2019

RE/REA
2019F4A9AR

PRC/Mainland China
17 June 2019

RE/REAL
201965178

PRC/Mainland China

21 May 2019

RE/RER
20195821 H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB98,039,200

AE#98,039,2007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR#20,000,0007

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to

the Company

FRREERE

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

30%

30%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development

UESEES

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development

UESEES
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) F

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE : ()

ZHLREXBRAR

Anhui Hongxun Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.* (“Anhui Hongxun”)
(Note(a))

RHARERBRAT™
([ RMELE]) (M7t (a)

ERHZEXEERAA

Hefei Jiusan Real Estate Co., Ltd.***
(“Hefei Jiusan”) (Note(a))

AERLBEEERDA™
([&R%RE ) (Hita)

BMMEEZARAA

Chuzhou Jiaze Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

BMMEEEERAR

EREEREXBRAA
Hefei Yixun Real Estate Co., Ltd.”™
AIREREXERAA

ENEEBEEBAT

Bozhou Hexun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

ZMEREXBRAA

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
KL
RIBERAHR
R 2

PRC/Mainland China
14 May 2019

RE/RER
2019F5714H

PRC/Mainland China
12 April 2019

RE/REAL
2019F4 A12H

PRC/Mainland China
9 April 2019

RE/REAL
2019F4A9AR

PRC/Mainland China
27 May 2019

B/ RERH
2019%5H27H

PRC/Mainland China
20 May 2019

RE/REAL
2019E5A20H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

RMB35,000,000

AR#35,000,0007

RMB50,000,000

AR#50,000,0007C

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

A#100,000,0007C

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

YNGIE-¢21¢ )

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXK

47% Investment
holding

47% REZK
30% Property
development

30% VE
100% Property
development

100% E ik
100% Property
development

100% MERE
100% Property
development

100% MERE
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. QFER@

112

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG ) S
BAt

Principal
activities

TEEHR

BEEE (B
ENRREZBRAA PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB71,430,000 70% Property
Bozhou Rongxun Real Estate 30 May 2019 development
Co., Ltd.***
EMEBREEBR AR mE/RERE ART1,430,000T 70% MERE
20195 30H
EMNEREXZBRAA PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB50,000,000 100% Property
Bozhou Hengxun Real Estate 30 May 2019 development
Co., Ltd.**
EMEREEBRAR HmE/HRERE ARS50,000,000T 100% MERE
20195 A30H
AEGRREZRR AR PRC/Mainland China  RMB80,000,000 30% Property
Guoyangxian Taixun Real Estate 14 May 2019 development
Co., Ltd.** (“Guoyangxian
Taixun’) (Note(a))
AEEREEEERAR™ ME/hERE  AR80,000,0007T 30% ELE
(RFES%RE]) (HiE) 2019F5F14H
MFERREZBRAF PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB20,000,000 34% Property
Lixin Taixun Real Estate Co., Ltd.*** 10 August 2019 development
(“Lixinxian Taixun”) (Note(a))
MEEREEEBRAR™ HE/HhERE  AR20,000,0007T 34% ELE
([REHRE])(HiHE) 20198 A10H
AREBEEXEERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Property
Hefei Chengxun Real Estate 30 July 2019 development
Co., Ltd.**
BERRELERAR RE/FERS AR¥20,000,0007T 100% MERE
2019%7A30H
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) F

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE : ()

ENmtEEEERNA

Chaohu Shixun Real Estate
Co., Ltd. "

ERmHEEEERAE ™

BNEREXBERAF

Chuzhou Tengxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™*

BNEEEXERAR

BNEREXBERAF

Chuzhou Hengxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™

BMNEREXBERAR

BHARBZBERNA

Chuzhou Jiuxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™

BMAREEBERAR

BMRREXBRAF

Chuzhou Rongxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™

BMNREREZBERAR

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
ML
RIBERAHR
R 2

PRC/Mainland China
24 July 2019

RE/REAL
20197 A24H

PRC/Mainland China
25 July 2019

RE/REAL
20197 A25H

PRC/Mainland China
25 July 2019

RE/REAL
20197 A25H

PRC/Mainland China
25 July 2019

RE/REAL
20197 A25H

PRC/Mainland China
25 July 2019

RE/REAL
20197 A25H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB22,222,200

AR#22,222,2007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

YNGIE-¢21¢ )

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXR

60% Property
development

60% MERE
90% Property
development

90% MERE
100% Property
development

100% MERE
100% Property
development

100% MERE
100% Property
development

100% MERE
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114

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 17

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

HREREXBRAR

Nanjing Chunxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.*™

HREREFBRAF"

HREREXBRAA
Nanjing Xixun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
HREEEXFRAR

BE-REXERLA
Jinan Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

ER=REXBERRA"

BEAREXEBRLA
Jinan Jiuxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
ERARBEEERAF"

BEAREZXEBRAA
Jinan Hexun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
BEAREXBRAA

ERRREEEROA
Jinan Qianxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
BRRRERBRAA

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
16 August 2019

RE/RERL
2019E8A16H

PRC/Mainland China
16 August 2019
RE/HER
2019F8H16H

PRC/Mainland China
10 July 2019

HE /R E R
20197 H10H

PRC/Mainland China
24 July 2019
HE/ HE R
20197 A24H

PRC/Mainland China
24 July 2019

B/ RER
201957 A24H

PRC/Mainland China
24 July 2019

B/ RERH
201957 A24H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

AR#100,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG ) S
BAt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development

EGES

Property
development

ESGES

Property
development

UESES

Property
development

UESES

Property
development

UESEES
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) F

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE : ()

EEARGEEEZNERAA
Shanghai Jiuxun Enterprise
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.™*
TEARCEERFRABRAF

ZNEREEXBRATF

Bozhou Xunsheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd.”* (“Bozhou Xunsheng’)
(Note(a)/Note(b))

ENBREXBRAR™
(TZNER ) (Mt a) Hiib)

ER-EEFARAA
Lingbi Sanxun Real Estate Co., Ltd.™*
BE-REXARART™

EEREEHEARAA

Guangde Shengfa Real Estate
Co., Ltd.** (“Guangde Shengfa’)
(Note(a))

EERERHEBRAR™
((BRBRR)) (i)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
KL
RIBERAHR
R 2

PRC/Mainland China
8 August 2019

RE /R E R
20198 A8H

PRC/Mainland China
14 July 2020

E/TER
202057 A 14H

PRC/Mainland China
4 June 2020
R/ RE R
20206 A4H

PRC/Mainland China
28 June 2019

E/TER
20196 A28 H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

RMB10,000,000

AR ®10,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR#10,000,0007T

YNGIE-¢21¢ )

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXK

100% Property
development

100% E ik
35% Property
development

35% ESGE
80% Property
development

80% E e
27% Property
development

27% MERE

T FEHR ZREREEFRAR
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1.

116

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

BEGREEXBERAT

Huaiyuan Tongxun Real Estate
Co., Ltd. "™

BEGRREXBRAF

BERREZBERAA

Huaiyuan Xunsen Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™**

BERREZBRAA™

BEEEERBERAF

Huaiyuan Xungui Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™*

BEREEXBERAF™

BERRKEZBRAA

Huaiyuan Xunmao Real Estate
Co., Ltd.™**

BEERELERAT™

BMARLEERER AR

Chuzhou Jiuxun Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

BMAZRGEEBBRAE

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
24 June 2020

RE/REAL
202065248

PRC/Mainland China
13 July 2020

RE/REAL
20207 A13H

PRC/Mainland China
13 July 2020

RE/REA
20207 A13H

PRC/Mainland China
13 July 2020

RE/REAL
20207 A13H

PRC/Mainland China
12 October 2020

RE/RERL
2020%F10A12H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AE#20,000,0007T

RMB620,000,000

ARE
620,000,0007C

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to

the Company

FRREERE

B

87%

87%

87%

87%

87%

87%

87%

87%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Property
development

UESEE

Property
development
MERE
Property
development
MERE
Property
development
MERE
Property

development

UESEES
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. QXFAER@

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
ML
RIBERAHR
R 2

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXR

BiEss : (8)
IRmEEHEERRAA PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 31% Property
Jiangyin Chengrun Real Estate 12 August 2020 development
Co., Ltd.*** (“Jiangyin Chengrun’)
(Note(a))
TRmEEEEERAR™ B/ B AREK100,000,0007T 31% ELE
(Trem®E]) (M) 202058 A12H
IRTEEEEERAA PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 31% Property
Jiangyin Xurun Real Estate 12 August 2020 development
Co., Ltd.”* (“Jiangyin Xurun”)
(Note(a))
IRTREEXERAA™ HE/HE RN AR100,000,0007 31% NERE
(IR R ]) Azt a) 202048/ 12H
IERREZBRAF PRC/Mainland China  RMB81,630,000 51% Property
Jiangyin Liangsheng Real Estate 9 November 2020 development
Co., Ltd.**
IRRREXBRAF™ HE/HmERN ARES1,630,000T 51% NERE
2020511 A9H
LE=REZXEBRAA PRG/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% Property
Shanghai Sanxun Real Estate 13 July 2020 development
Co., Ltd.**
TE=RELERRA" HE/ BN ARES50,000,000T 100% NERE
2020%7H13H
HEEREMESERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Trading
Shanghai Xixun Building 20 July 2020
Material Trading Co., Ltd.*
FBERENEHBERAF ME/ BN  ARES5000,000T 100% 25
2020%7H20H

T FEHR ZREREEFRAR
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 17

Subsidiaries
HELHE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiERE ()

LTBREEHREBRLA

Shanghai Zhensheng Marketing
and Planning Co., Ltd.™

LBRBEHEREBRAA

LTBREENEHERLF
Shanghai Rongxun Building

Material Trading Co., Ltd.™

LEBRERMESBRAR"

LBRRENESHERAF
Shanghai Weixun Building

Material Trading Co., Ltd.”
LERERMESBERAR"

ENZRLRXEEEABRATA
Bozhou Yaoxun Enterprise
Management consulting
Co., Ltd.*™*
EHEZOXERFNERAT"

RE(LE)PXERBRAR

Jinxun (shanghai) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.**

HE(LE)CEERFRDA

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
HEMEKL
RIBERAHR
R

PRC/Mainland China
20 July 2020

RE/RERL
20207 A20H

PRC/Mainland China
22 December 2020

RE/RERL
202012 A22H

PRC/Mainland China
28 January 2021

RE/REA
202141 A28H

PRC/Mainland China
2 February 2021

RE /R ER
2021F2A2H

PRC/Mainland China
2 February 2021

RE/ AL
20212 A2H

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A EE

RMB1,000,000

AE%1,000,0007T

RMB120,000,000

ARE

120,000,0007T

RMB410,000,000

ARE

410,000,0007¢

RMB5,000,000

AE#5,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AK®10,000,0007T

YNGIK-¢>1¢ ))

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to

the Company

FRREERE

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEHR

Trading

g5

Trading

g5

Trading

g5

Investment
holding

REZR

Investment
holding

REZR
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 1. QXFAER@

Subsidiaries
B

Indirectly held: (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations
KL
RIBERAHR
R 2

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital
R A E{E

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
NG )Y
BAt

Principal
activities

TEXK

BiEss : (8)
EHEEEXRBRAF PRC/Mainland China  RMB70,000,000 70% Property
Wuxi Xunyi Real Estate Co., Ltd.*** 10 February 2021 development
BHREEEERDA™ RE/ BN ARE70,000,0007 70% MERE
20214 2H10H
BHBEEZERNA PRC/Mainland China  RMB50,000,000 34% Property
Chuzhou Xinxing Real Estate 15 March 2021 development
Co., Ltd.*** (“Chuzhou Xinxing")
(Note(a))
BNEBREZXERAF RE/ BN ARE50,000,0007T 34% mERE
(RNEE])(H77(a) 202153 A15H
HREUELERNF PRC/Mainland China  RMB50,000,000 100% Property
Bengbu Xunfeng Real Estate 10 Aug 2021 development
Co., Ltd.*.
HERUELER AR RE/RERH ARE50,000,0007T 100% mERE
202158 A10H
EMEEEXERNA PRC/Mainland China  RMB278,600,000 51% Property
Changzhou Xunfeng Real Estate 1 Nov 2021 development
Co., Ltd.*** (“Changzhou
Xunfeng”) (Note(b))
EMREEEERAA HE/ BN AR278,600,0007 51% NERE
([HMEE])(Hib) 2021411818
BNBREXERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% Property
Changzhou Jinxun Real Estate 13 Oct 2021 development
Co., Ltd.**
EMNRREEAB A HE/ BNt AR¥S50,000,0007T 100% NERE
20217104138

T FEHR ZREREEFRAR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

The People’s Republic of China is hereafter referred to as
the “PRC”.

The Renminbi Yuan is hereafter referred to as “RMB”.

The Hong Kong dollar is hereafter referred to as “HKD”.

The United States dollar is hereafter referred to as “USD”.

*k

Sanxun (Anhui) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. is
registered as a foreign-owned enterprise under PRC
law.

These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

These companies are subsidiaries of non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and,
accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by
virtue of the Company having control over them.

Note (a): The Group was granted more than a majority of voting rights in the

shareholders’ meeting according to the contractual arrangement
and articles of association with the equity holders, which gives the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of these
entities, therefore, these entities were accounted for as subsidiaries
of the Group.

Percentage of voting rights
held by the Group

Sanxun Jinfurong 100%
Shouxian Jinggiao 51%
Fuyang Shangjun 51%
Taihu Sanxun 51%
Suzhou Sanxun 51%
Nanjing Hongxun 70%
Hefei Jiusan 51%
Anhui Hongxun 51%
Guoyangxian Taixun 51%
Lixinxian Taixun 51%
Bozhou Xunsheng 51%
Guangde Shengfa 51%
Jiangyin Xurun 67%
Jiangyin Chengrun 67%
Chuzhou Xinxing 67%

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited = Annual Report 2021

s

~aEIER @)
TR EARLNBAS [HE] -

TXBARBTAIARE] -

TXHEETAS BTl -

TXRETA[ET] -

Kiit(a) -

ZR(RBOLXEEERAA
REFBOEAEEMAIEEE
b -

p=lll2

OIS

= 4
5
]
2
b
S
el
&
H
e
=
Hl

o

ZERBRBARAHEEZEM
BARMWMERAR  FEit - A
KRB GEAZF R R
mARINSHIELRE] -

RIBEBESEANGOLERAZE
RAR - REBRERARE LEKBA
SHEERE  REAKEREEENT
EZTERWAREY Bt - %FE
BARY AAEENHBRF

AEEFFRE

BB

ZREERR 100%
BE5RE 51%
Ef5 EAB 51%
Kp=2 51%
BIN=% 51%
FmohER 70%
EIERZE 51%
X -GN 51%
NEI T e 51%
MEHRRE 51%
2% 51%
BERE 51%
LR e 67%
LkemEE 67%
B 2% 67%




1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Note (b): The percentage of attributable equity interests presented is the
percentage of beneficiary interests held by the Group. The equity
interests in these entities legally held by the Group are lower than
the beneficiary interests because of the existence of the financing
arrangement which is recognised as borrowings.

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following
subsidiaries as collateral to the financing companies as at 31
December 2021:

Percentage of equity

transferred as at
31 December 2021

Bozhou Xunsheng 1%
Changzhou Xunfeng 14%

The Group is exposed to variable returns from its involvement
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the relevant activities of these entities in the ordinary course of
business. The financing companies earn fixed return from their
investments and their rights in these entities are considered
protective in nature. In this regard, the investments from financing
companies are treated as liabilities of the Group and these entities
are considered as subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs (which include all standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB, and International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the IASB that
remain in effect), and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1

122

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)
Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounted to
RMB1,372,124,000 while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB464,894,000 only. Considering the
market condition in the real estate sector remains under
pressure in 2022, and therefore, in the absence of a
sharp recovery in the market and a resurge of various
financing options, the Company remains cautious about its
liquidity in the near term. The above conditions indicated
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In view of such circumstances, the directors consider
that the Group has taken various measures and will have
adequate funds available to enable it to operate as a
going concern, taken into account the past operating
performance of the Group and the following:

(@) The Group continues to implement measures to
accelerate the pre-sales and sales of its properties
under development and completed properties, and
to speed up the collection of outstanding sales
proceeds.

(b) As of December 31, 2021, the Group has interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings contracts signed
but not yet used, amounting to RMB703,803,000.
Up to the date of approval of this consolidated
financial information, the above-mentioned loans
have been granted for RMB168,833,000.

(@) The Group is actively negotiating with several
financial institutions to obtain new loans at a
reasonable cost. Certain financial institutions have
indicated their intention to grant new loans to the
Group.

(d) The Group continues to monitor capital expenditure
to balance and relieve cash resource to support
operations.

(e) The Group continues to take action to tighten cost

controls over various operating expenses.

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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2.1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

The Directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow forecast covering a period of twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account of the above-mentioned plans
and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the directors believe it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, given the volatility of the
property sector in China and the uncertainties to obtain
continuous support by the banks and the Group’s
creditors, material uncertainties exist as to whether
management of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to write down the
values of assets to the Group’s recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial information.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the Group) for the Year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.1
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

2.1

2HEE @)

BHEEE)
MAATEERRERE ORI E
ATKRS IR T KA CER @94 -
BIAEBRTFHERSTHEAEHIRE
ARMENSEEE—EEEER
BR - AtE

@ ERKREAFEMKRERAEA
B KZHE

) HEMAHNRBEMELNER :

X

© AKENRERLEBERTE -

P 8 % A 1A 48 [R) B 3 B ) ) B s R 3R
RAEARRB NS HRRE -
MEBARZEEB RNEEIGZE
ZBRAGAARIE -—EEE A
B BEEZSFENERIEZBLE -

BEMEMEERAZAKRID TIH
BRASE 2B RAIER AN RIEE
Petgsm - AR B EBORERER
ZEBRRAHE  AKEKERFZHE
REMEENMESBEARBBEE
REBME - #m o RA > XHERER
ENGEHRERERZBHEHE -

MEERIERBER L =RZEFHIRE
ZTHEEZHALREEY  ARESE
MAEERGERWRKRERT - M8
NEZEREaREZEHGFERE
ZHIHE) - REERX PR °



2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
(early adopted)

Amendment to
IFRS 16
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continueq)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are
described below:

126

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in
the previous amendments which affect financial
reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial
assets and liabilities when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a
direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent
to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects
the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore,
the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continueq)

(@)

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in RMB and foreign
currencies based on the Inter bank Offered Rate
as at 31 December 2021. Since the interest rates
of these borrowings were not replaced by RFRs
during the period, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group. If the interest rates of these borrowings
are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the
Group will apply this practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings provided that the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met.

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as
the Group did not have any rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
for the ended 31 December 2021.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 ©C2E#1B & &£ %1 B R Bf
i & 2Rl
The Group has not applied the following new and revised AEEA ER % ER B REFAAT
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in B 28 5 B 5 K A 2 B 37 T R A RT B
these financial statements. PR B T R 22 R o
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BRI EER B ELRLE
Framework! 35 (BRI A) ;
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI RS ER REFZLEAHE
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its F 1057 R B ATEI A=) pTae
Associate or Joint Venture® SEHERIE28  AMAELE
(BRIA) BT &
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BRI mEER (REEA A2
FEATH
Amendments to IFRS 17  Initial Application of IFRS 17 BIFX ARSI E R 225 B A
and IFRS 9-Comparative FATSHRUERIAR)  BHEERE
Information? 179 K BIER A1
I EER

Amendments to IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Insurance Contracts® *

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting

B B 5 3 o 2 A
FATHRUEETA)

EoE— 1t
S
G N

et ERER HFRESES

(1EFTA)

MBI B

REETERFAN 25 HR K

and IFRS Practice Policies? KBRS B 7 w5
Statement 2 AR EZE AR
EPLHACCHEN)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting i el BE 1A T
Estimates? EXUACCHEN)
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets e ar 2R BB X G EF
and Liabilities arising from a F125 (BRI AR) mEERAEHE
Single Transaction? 1B 1 A B TR
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: BB = R 2R W - BE R
Proceeds before Intended F165 (BRI AR) R - ZEFE
Use! EZEFIATE
E
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of S]] EEAA —ETT
Fulfilling a Contract’ EITHRUERIAR) B AIBIHKA
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to IFRS 1, B R 522 R BB ekt

IFRS Standards 2018- IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples 2018F £2020F EAISAH
2020 accompanying IFRS 16, PR [Z L X B 7 s A

and IAS 411

A ZE 955 K B

B % A2 Al
1657 BT R
BRI LA B2
PSR
KB & A
FAFRAERT
1
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 i 202241 A1 8 k2 % Fis 8 F = HE
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 2 202341 A1 8 52 % 58 F = 2R
£
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 8 RET ARSI EBBE - MR R
adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 4 7202046 A T 5 B BR 8 % 3 2 24 A

FATHREERT - BRI ISIRE2EAIE 457
BEFTUAERBR#AR - 2T RBRAR
20231 A1 HATHABMEEHMEAR
PR & &t 2RI S5 305 M I B B f 5 s o5
AllZEo%R

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS
37 or IFRIC-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or
loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in
December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will
be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments
specify that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a
liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with
those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-
mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

132

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Sanxun Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2021

2.3

E FEAR 1B 4 ok & RN Y B R Bt
BmEER ()

B &t &R 1658 (BTN LB
BUEWE  BERXBEEKRATN
BREZEEEZEDHENREEEES
HREEM R RIEFBRERELEN
EMBEEHEMERE - HRk - B
RiEEEREEEMNEREEENE
RERZSEBEEKAKN - 25458
202291 A1k 2 B FRRFE A
A WEBHEANEESANER
EBEIANTERREI NSRS
MERERZEAHERADE K
EBREEER - A FIREREA - %5
B AR H A AEBNPBRE
ERAMEARTE -

BB & st RSB 375 (BT A) &5 -
MRIEER S EREI7TRFEE D
EEBERMEME - BITRAMAAN
ERESHERBEBNKAE - B4
EREEOKRABREETZE LT
ERA(PIINERS T RMH) REE
T2 A W E &R E AR A2 B (f
WAEBITEANMBYE BB RE
BHENTEERAUARANERES
BRA) - —BREITBRERESILE
EERBEER  BRIFANPARREF T
B DRIREBREN - ZFEFAR
B2022F1 A1 Bz B RBHFEH
AN LEAREREXEREH
CHENAESEE =Ll s A
ABTEHEHEENAGH - AFFRR
R - NPEBZFETANERNR
ERERNVIGERBHER RN
BamAR  BRASIILRER -
ZEET BRI EEARBE TG
BREKREMERATE -



2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in lllustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying IFRS 16.

31 DECEMBER 2021 | —2=——4%+—-A=+—~

2.3 EREME s R 4 Ry B R B

FEREER (@)

BIBR B 75 3R 2 E I [20184F 22020 4F 4F
B BEE S BIFR B IS RS 2 RIS 155

BUBR B 75 R 5 R RSB 05K ~ BUBR B 53R
EAERIE16EEEN 2 HB A KBRS

ERIFARZBFTA - FHar#EARA
EEMNZEBETAFBOT ¢

] BRI B E LR F R T
A BEREBIHEEHE]
BN S Bl B ER R R
TRBENKIFTLEEEEE
NAEEMER “%SEBERE
BEBRAEEFACHEX
MBI ER @ BREEBERA
S ERARKEAM T Z Tk
BHER -EREE@E uT$
EARERSERERB@ES
ﬁm@ﬁ#ﬁiﬁﬂffﬂﬁA57?Zf§
BRI cREE %5
BRI ARAE20226F1 A1 B 2%
MR EE R ER - 2 TR
PEA - %ZSBIAERTE
HASENHBRKRELEEM
BEATE -

o BB B 75 R £ R 165
& MIBRBIRR B S RS 2R
165RBEM 2 S HI13h AR E
MERENREANKGB -
I 22 H M A IR B B PR B IS SR &
ZERIFE169H BEERBEIE
BRI AR EERRK -

—T- R =wEksEEsEAR - 133



31 DECEMBER 2021 | —Z-—%+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

134

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations other than those under
common control and goodwill

Business combinations other than those under common
control are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations other than those under
common control and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of the associates
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at FVTPL at fair
value and investment properties at the end of each year.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 2 -

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

Level 3 -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each year as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iif) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if
(Continued):

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

20%-25%
20%-33%
20%-33%

Motor vehicles
Office and electronic equipment
Temporary facilities improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year
in which they arise.Any gains or losses on the retirement
or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost comprising land costs, construction costs,
borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs
directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless those will not be realised in the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the
statements of financial position at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total costs of land and buildings attributable to the
unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated
costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Leases
Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of
the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful life as follows:

Plant and machinery

If ownership of the 2 to 5 years leased asset
transfers to the Group by the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

LLeases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the low-value asset recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that is considered
to be of low value (i.e., below RMB30,000). Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
loans from a related party, amounts due to related parties
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not
carried at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the
amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Offsetting of financial instruments

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of each year of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of properties and
services provided in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown, net of taxes.

Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset
is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the asset transfers at a point in time.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of the
financing component if it is significant.

For sales contracts for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or
the legal title of the completed property and the Group
has the present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument of the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties
under development, completed properties held for sale and
property, plant and equipment, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of
the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing
to satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected t